
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


 August 27, 2009
  7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda.


PRESENTATION/RECOGNITION:


PUBLIC HEARING:


A. Consideration of Petition No. 1216-09 and Petition No. RP-046-09, John
Alan Bell, Owner/Agent, request to rezone Lot 18 of Lakeview Estates
consisting of 1.03 acres from R-40 to O-I to develop Office Institutional Uses
and request to Change the Use of Lot 18 from single-family residential to
office-institutional.  This property is located in Land Lot 127 of the 5th District
and fronts on SR 54 West.  AT THE APPLICANT’S REQUEST, THE
PLANNING COMMISSION UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDED TO TABLE
SAID PETITIONS UNTIL THE SEPTEMBER 3, 2009 PLANNING
COMMISSION MEETING, AND FOR SAID PETITIONS TO RETURN TO
THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ON SEPTEMBER 24, 2009.


B. Consideration of Petition No. 1217-09, BBWJ, LLC., Owners/Agents,
request to rezone 4.77 acres from C-C Conditional to C-H to develop a Mini-
Storage Facility.  This property is located in Land Lot 182 of the 5th District
and fronts on SR 54 East and Corinth Road.  STAFF RECOMMENDS
APPROVAL SUBJECT TO THREE (3) RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS.
THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDS APPROVAL SUBJECT
TO THREE (3) RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS 3-2.


C. Consideration of proposed revisions to the Fayette County Comprehensive
Plan Future Use Map and the Land Element Text regarding the SR 74 North
Corridor; and proposed amendments to the Fayette County Zoning
Ordinance associated with the SR 74 North Corridor.  This item was last
discussed during the July 1, 2009 Board of Commissioners Workshop
Meeting.


D. Consideration of Resolution 2009-13 which establishes ad valorem tax
millage rates for 2009.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Jack Smith, Chairman


Herb Frady, Vice Chairman
Lee Hearn


Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell


i


STAFF
Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney


Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk


Floyd Jones, Deputy Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month at 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: (770) 305-5200
Fax: (770) 305-5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
August 27, 2009
Page 2


PUBLIC COMMENT:


CONSENT AGENDA:


1. Approval of appointment of John Lane to the Region 3 Planning Board for Mental Health, Developmental
Disabilities, and Addictive Diseases for a three-year term commencing this date and ending on August 26,
2012.


2. Approval of staff’s request to increase Public Safety and Emergency Management’s Fiscal Year 2009
Donations/Miscellaneous Revenue Account by $2,281 and to increase the Food/Catered Meals Expense
Account by $2,281 to account for donations from various companies, a benevolence society, and citizens. 


3. Approval of the Water Committee’s recommendation for approval of a Memorandum of Understanding between
Fayette County and Peachtree City for the purpose of allowing Peachtree City’s Dive Team to train at Lake
Horton and Lake Kedron.


4. Approval of Minutes for the Board of Commissioners Workshop Meeting held on August 5, 2009 and the Board
of Commissioners Meeting held on August 13, 2009.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT
ATTORNEY’S REPORT
STAFF REPORTS
BOARD REPORTS
EXECUTIVE SESSION
 ADJOURNMENT








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Board of Commissioners Carol Chandler


Approval of appointment of John Lane to the Region 3 Planning Board for Mental Health, Developmental Disabilities and Addictive 


Diseases for a three-year term commencing this date and ending on August 26, 2012.


For mental health services, Georgia is divided into 5 regions. Fayette County is in Region 3. Services do overlap between regions to 


enhance efficiency of certain services. Formerly under the umbrella of the Georgia Department of Human Resources, the state's largest 


division, a new department was formed this year, known as the Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Disabilities, to 


separate out mental health services. Regional Boards are advisory groups who facilitate coordinated comprehensive planning efforts for 


the delivery of mental heath services in Georgia. These boards act as liaison between the Department and local communities. They work 


to keep the public, consumers, local and state-level officials, and service providers informed of common issues and needs related to 


mental health in their region. 


 


Fayette County has 2 seats on this Board. Ms. Brenda Cox, one of Fayette's appointees, moved out of state in July, leaving a vacancy. 


The other member is Harriette Steele. Appointments are for 3 years each. There is a limit of 2 terms per appointee.  


 


Mr. Lane has agreed to serve.


Vote to appoint John Lane to the Region 3 Planning Board for Mental Health, Developmental Disabilities and Addictive Diseases for a 3-


year term to commence this date and to end on August 26, 2012.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, August 27, 2009





































		Agenda Request

		Letter- Georgia Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Disabilities

		Announcement of New Department










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Board of Commissioners Mary S. Holland


Consideration of Resolution No. 2009 - 13 which establishes ad valorem tax millage rates for 2009. 


Mary Holland will present information concerning the 2009 millage rates, including an overview of the effect of negative reassessments, 


the decrease in growth in the tax digest, etc. 


 


The Board of Commissioners is not proposing any increase in the millage rates for the county's maintenance and operations budget, in 


spite of a loss in revenues resulting from a downturn in values and little growth in the total value of the tax digest.


Adoption of Resolution No. 2009-13 establishing ad valorem tax millage rates for 2009.


Not Applicable.


Yes Annually


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Public HearingThursday, August 27, 2009







2009 Property Tax Rates


Fayette County 
Board of Commissioners


August 27, 2009







Digest Changes - 2009


• 2008 Digest $5,431,100,479
• Digest Changes


�Negative Reassessments $30,202,449


�Growth 74,320,112


�Change in Gross Digest $44,117,663


�Exemptions 17,612,921


�Change in Net Digest $26,504,742


• 2009 Digest $5,457,605,221







Fayette County, GA


Growth in Taxable Digest 


2005-2009


$319,255,639 $319,729,851


$187,965,041


$26,504,742


$394,139,291


$0


$100,000,000


$200,000,000


$300,000,000


$400,000,000


$500,000,000


2005 2006 2007 2008 2009


Digest Years







PROPOSED
Millage Rates
2009 vs 2008


-0-0.5480.548Emergency 


Medical Services


-0-1.9911.991Fire Services


-0-5.4005.400Maintenance & 


Operations (M&O)


Change 


Increase / 


(Decrease)


Actual           


2008


Resolution 


2009Description







PROPOSED
Millage Rates
2009 vs 2008


-0-


5.400


0.548


1.991


7.939


5.400


0.548


1.991


7.939


Unincorporated County


M&O


EMS


Fire


-0-


5.400


0.548


1.991


7.939


5.400


0.548


1.991


7.939


Brooks/Tyrone


M&O


EMS


Fire


-0-


5.400


0.548          


5.948


5.400


0.548


5.948


Fayetteville


M&O


EMS


-0-5.4005.400


PTC


M&O


Change 


Increase / (Decrease)


Over Last Year


Actual  


2009


Resolution 


2009Description







5.4005.4005.432


4.888
5.191


5.446


1.9911.9912.000


3.231
3.091


2.906


0.550 0.548 0.548
0.00


2.00


4.00


6.00


2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009


Digest Years


T
a


x
 R


a
te


 p
e


r 
$


1
0


0
0


 o
f 
T


a
x
a


b
le


 V
a


lu
e


COUNTY TAX RATE
FIRE TAX RATE
EMS TAX RATE


FAYETTE COUNTY, GA


PROPERTY TAX RATES - GENERAL FUND, FIRE FUND and EMS FUND


2004 - 2009







Fayette County, GA    


Total Property Tax Rate for All Funds 


2004 - 2009


8.677
8.282


7.794
7.982 7.939 7.939


5.000


7.000


9.000


2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009


Digest Years







Homeowners Tax Relief Grant Change


• The Homeowners Tax Relief Grant was 
established through State legislation in 1999.


• Every year since, the GA General Assembly and 
the Governor have funded this credit to 
homeowners by paying the difference directly to 
local governments.


• This credit appeared separately on a property tax 
bill. The total tax due did not change, only the 
amount the homeowner paid. 


• During the 2009 Legislative Session, this credit 
for homeowners was eliminated. 







FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


140 Stonewall Avenue West


Fayetteville, GA  30214 MAKE CHECK OR MONEY ORDER PAYABLE TO:
 Fayette County Tax Commissioner


Taxpayer: UNINCORPORATED
Description:


Location: SAMPLE TAX BILL  -  2008 vs 2009
District:


2008 - HTRG provided by the State 


Entity Adjusted FMV


Net 


Assessment Exemptions


Taxable 


Value


Millage 


Rate Gross Tax Credit Net Tax


STATE TAX 250,000.00         100,000.00    2,000.00       98,000.00    0.250 24.50             22.50                


   HTRG Credit County 8,000.00      -2.00
COUNTY M&O 250,000.00         100,000.00    5,000.00       95,000.00    7.356 698.82           469.80              


   County Sales Tax Credit 95,000.00    -1.956 -185.82
   HTRG Credit County 8,000.00      -43.20
COUNTY EMS 250,000.00         100,000.00    5,000.00       95,000.00    0.548 52.06             52.06                


COUNTY SCHOOL M&O 250,000.00         100,000.00    2,000.00       98,000.00    19.750 1,935.50        1,777.50           


   HTRG Credit Schools 8,000.00      -158.00
COUNTY SCHOOL BOND 250,000.00         100,000.00    -               100,000.00  4.170 417.00           417.00              


COUNTY FIRE 250,000.00         100,000.00    5,000.00       95,000.00    1.991 189.15           173.22              


   HTRG Credit Co Fire 8,000.00      -15.93


TOTALS 32.109 3,317.05        (404.95)  2,912.10           


2,912.10           


2009 - HTRG no longer provided by the State


Entity Adjusted FMV


Net 


Assessment Exemptions


Taxable 


Value


Millage 


Rate Gross Tax Credit Net Tax


STATE TAX 250,000.00         100,000.00    2,000.00       98,000.00    0.250 24.50             24.50                


   HTRG Credit County -               0.00
COUNTY M&O 250,000.00         100,000.00    5,000.00       95,000.00    7.206 684.57           513.00              


   County Sales Tax Credit 95,000.00    -1.806 -171.57
   HTRG Credit County -               0.00
COUNTY EMS 250,000.00         100,000.00    5,000.00       95,000.00    0.548 52.06             52.06                


COUNTY SCHOOL M&O 250,000.00         100,000.00    2,000.00       98,000.00    20.000 1,960.00        1,960.00           


   HTRG Credit Schools -               0.00
COUNTY SCHOOL BOND 250,000.00         100,000.00    -               100,000.00  3.420 342.00           342.00              


COUNTY FIRE 250,000.00         100,000.00    5,000.00       95,000.00    1.991 189.15           189.15              


   HTRG Credit Co Fire -               0.00


TOTALS 31.609 3,252.30        (171.57)  3,080.73           


3,080.73           


Change in Taxes Due State 2.00                  


County M&O 43.20                


HTRG Credit County School M&O 158.00              


Millage Rate Change County School M&O 24.50                


County School Bond (75.00)               


County Fire 15.93                


TOTAL TAX 168.63              


Sample Property Tax Statement - Unincorporated


Penalty
Interest


Sample Property Tax Statement - Unincorporated


Penalty
Interest


TOTAL DUE


TOTAL DUE







                           
State of Georgia; 
County of Fayette  


 
RESOLUTION LEVYING COUNTY TAX 


FOR YEAR 2009 
No. 2009 – 13 


 
Upon motion duly made and unanimously passed, it is hereby ordered by the Board of Commissioners of 


Fayette County, Georgia, duly convened this 27th day of August, 2009, that upon $2,241,610,471, the value of all 


property taxable for County purposes in Fayette County, Georgia, as appears upon the digest thereof, and upon all 


other taxable property in unincorporated Fayette County, Georgia, there be levied and collected for County 


purposes as set forth in the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, Section 48-5-220, and as hereinafter amended and 


as otherwise authorized by law, a tax, ad valorem, for the year 2009, at the aggregated rate for all such purposes of 


$7.391  per $1,000.00 of assessed valuation, constituting a total tax levy for purposes in unincorporated Fayette 


County of 7.391 mills. 


Upon motion duly made and unanimously passed, it is hereby ordered by the Board of Commissioners of 


Fayette County, Georgia, duly convened this 27th day of August, 2009, that upon $3,215,994,750, the value of all 


property taxable for County purposes in Fayette County, Georgia, as appears upon the digest thereof, and upon all 


other taxable property in incorporated Fayette County, Georgia, there be levied and collected for County purposes, 


as set forth in the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, Section 48-5-220, as hereinafter amended and as otherwise 


authorized by law, ad valorem, for the year 2009, at the aggregated rate for all such purposes to be levied as 


follows:  


  
1. All property located within the City of Peachtree City will be assessed at $5.400 per $1000.00 of assessed 


valuation, constituting an ad valorem tax levy for purposes in Peachtree City of 5.400 mills; 
 
2. All property located within the City of Fayetteville will be assessed at $5.400 per $1,000.00 of assessed 


valuation, constituting an ad valorem tax levy for purposes in Fayetteville of 5.400 mills; 
 
3. All property located within the Town of Tyrone will be assessed at $7.391 per $1,000.00 of assessed 


valuation, constituting an ad valorem tax levy for purposes in the Town of Tyrone of 7.391 mills; 
 
4. All property located within the Town of Brooks will be assessed at $7.391 per $1,000.00 of assessed 
 valuation, constituting an ad valorem tax levy for purposes in the Town of Brooks of $7.391; 
 
5. All property located within the Town of Woolsey will be assessed at $7.391 per $1,000.00 of assessed 
 valuation, constituting an ad valorem tax levy for purposes in Town of Woolsey of 7.391 mills. 


 
A millage rate of 1.991 mills shall be levied in all incorporated and unincorporated areas of Fayette County 


for fire protection services. The cities of Fayetteville and Peachtree City will receive millage rollbacks as a result of 


 







the combination of government services. Such rollbacks are as follows: the City of Fayetteville shall receive a 1.991 


mill rollback and; the City of Peachtree City shall receive a 1.991 mill rollback. 


In accordance with provisions within Article 9, Section 2, Paragraph 6 of the Constitution of the State of 


Georgia and O.C.G.A. § 36-70-24(3), Fayette County has created a special tax district for the purpose of providing 


Emergency Medical Services to its citizens, said special tax district encompassing all of Fayette County with 


exception of that portion of Fayette County which constitutes the City of Peachtree City. Upon $3,576,054,386, the 


value of all property taxable within the Special EMS Tax District, as appears upon the digest thereof, there shall be 


levied and collected a tax of $.548 per $1,000.00 of assessed valuation. 


In consideration of combined applicable rollbacks and the applicable Special EMS Tax District levy, the 


total ad valorem taxes levied and assessed are as follows: 7.939 mills for the unincorporated County; 5.948 mills 


for the City of Fayetteville; 5.400 for the City of Peachtree City; 7.939 mills for the Town of Brooks: 7.939 for the 


Town of Tyrone; and 7.939 for the Town of Woolsey. 


Upon recommendation of the Fayette County Board of Education, it is ordered that upon $5,020,342,064, 


the value of all property taxable for educational purposes in Fayette County as appears upon the digest thereof, 


and upon all other property in Fayette County, both real and personal, there be levied a tax, ad valorem, for the 


year 2008, for educational purposes in the amount of $20.000 per $1,000.00 of the assessed valuation on the 


digest as aforesaid, constituting a total tax levy for educational purposes of 20.000 mills. 


It is further ordered that upon $5,121,688,713, the value of all taxable property in said County as appears 


upon the digest thereof, computed by deducting only the special homestead exemption for certain persons 65 


years of age and over, and upon all other taxable property in said County, both real and personal, there be levied 


and collected a tax, ad valorem, for the year 2009, for the purpose of providing a sinking fund for retiring bonded 


indebtedness and discharging interest thereof, of the Fayette County School District, in the amount of $3.420 per 


$1,000.00 of assessed valuation, constituting a total tax levy of 3.420 mills. 


It is hereby ordered by the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, this 27th day of August, 


2009, that all taxes, as described and as levied by the adoption of this Resolution, shall be due and collected by the 


Tax Commissioner of Fayette County, by the close of the business day on November 15, 2009. 


So resolved this, the 27th day of August, 2009, by the 
 
      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
      FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
      ___________________________ 
      Jack R. Smith, Chairman 
 


Attest: 
 


___________________________ 
Clerk/Deputy Clerk 





		Agenda Request

		Presentation

		Resolution Levying County Tax for Year 200 No. 2009-13






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Planning & Zoning Peter A. Frisina/Dennis S. Dutton


Consideration of Petition No. 1217-09, BBWJ, LLC, Owners/Agents, request to rezone 4.77 acres from C-C Conditional to C-H to develop 


a Mini-Storage Facility.  This property is located in Land Lot 182 of the 5th District and fronts on SR 54 East and Corinth Road.


On May 27, 2004, the Fayette County Board of Commissioners considered Petition No.  1129-04 to rezone 4.766 acres from O-I 


Conditional to C-H to develop Retail Development; however, the petition was approved C-C subject to the following recommended 


condition: 


 


1. That any structure developed on the subject property will be required to meet additional setbacks based on the proposed widening of 


SR 54 East based on information obtained from the GDOT. 


 


Final Vote for approval or denial 


 


Staff recommended:  APPROVAL SUBJECT TO THE THREE (3) RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS. 


PC recommended:    APPROVAL SUBJECT TO THE THREE (3) RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS 3-2.


Not Applicable


Yes Thursday, May 27, 2004


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Yes


Public HearingThursday, August 27, 2009











































































SUBJECT
PROPERTY


SR 54


Corinth Road


Sim
ps


on
 R


oa
d


R-45


M-2


R-45


A-R A-R


R-40


A-R


R-40


A-R
A-R


A-R


A-R A-R
A-R


R-45
R-45


R-45
R-45


S-P-ZM-2


R-45R-45 R-45 R-45
R-45


R-45
R-45 A-R


R-45R-45


R-45


A-R


R-45 R-45
R-45 R-45


R-45R-45 R-45
R-45 R-45


A-R


A-R


R-45
R-45


R-45R-45R-45
R-45A-R


A-R A-R A-R


R-40


R-40
R-40


R-40
R-40


R-40


C-H


A-R


C-HR-40
R-40


R-40
R-40 R-40


A-R


R-40
R-40


R-40R-40
R-40


R-40R-40


A-R


R-40R-40R-40R-40


R-40


R-40
A-RR-40


R-40


R-40


R-40
R-40


A-R


A-RR-40


A-R
R-40 R-40A-R


R-40 R-40R-40


R-40


A-R


R-40 R-40
R-40


R-40


R-70


R-40 R-40
R-40R-40 R-40 R-40A-R R-40 R-40R-40


R-40
R-40 R-40R-40


R-40


A-R


R-40 NA
R-40


R-40R-45
A-R


R-40
A-R


R-45 R-45


R-45


A-R


A-R


A-R


R-40R-40 R-40
R-40


R-40 R-40 R-40


R-40


R-40
R-40


R-40
R-40


R-40
R-40


R-40
R-40R-40R-40


R-40
R-40


R-40


R-40


R-45
R-45


R-45


R-45


A-R


Petition 1217-09 











SUBJECT
PROPERTY


SR 54


Corinth Road


Sim
ps


on
 R


oa
d


Petition 1217-09 
LUP







SUBJECT
PROPERTY


SR 54


Corinth Road


Sim
ps


on
 R


oa
d


Petition 1217-09 







Firm Panel No.
13113C0107E


9/26/2008


840


840


820
840


840


830


830


840


Corinth Rd


Hwy 54


1 inch = 100 feet µ
LEGEND


! ! Streams
NWI Wetlands
Baseflood Elevation


500 Year Storm
 100 Year Storm Zone A 
100 Year Storm Zone AE  
100 Year Storm Zone AE (Floodway)


1217-09













		Agenda Request

		Minutes

		05-27-2009 BOC Minutes

		08-06-2009 Planning Commission Public Hearing Minutes



		Planning Commission Rezoning Report

		Planning and Zoning Staff Report










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Planning & Zoning Peter A. Frisina/Dennis S. Dutton


Consideration of Petition No. 1216-09 and Petition No. RP-046-09, John Alan Bell, Owner/Agent, request to rezone Lot 18 of Lakeview 


Estates consisting of 1.03 acres from R-40 to O-I to develop Office Institutional Uses and request to Change the Use of Lot 18 from 


single-family residential to office-institutional.  This property is located in Land Lot 127 of the 5th District and fronts on SR 54 West.


On October 25, 2007, the Fayette County Board of Commissioners denied Petition No.  1201-07 to rezone Lot 18 of Lakeview Estates 


Subdivision consisting of 1.03 acres from R-40 (Single-Family Residential) to O-I (Office-Institutional) (1201-07) and a Revision to the 


Final Plat of Lakeview Estates S/D to Change the Use of Lot 18 from Single-Family Residential to Office Uses (RP-039-06).  Lot 18 is 


located on SR 54 West only.  


 


On August 5, 2009, the applicant requested to table said petitions until September 3, 2009, to be heard by the Planning Commission and 


September 24, 2009, to be heard by the Board of Commissioners.  The applicant will be out of town on August 6, 2009. 


 


The Planning Commission unanimously recommended to TABLE said petitions as requested.


Table said petitions until September 3, 2009, to be heard by the Planning Commission and September 24, 2009, to be heard by the 


Board of Commissioners 


Planning Commission recommendation:  TABLE UNTIL SEPTEMBER 3, 2009 - PLANNING COMMISSION AND  


SEPTEMBER 24, 2009 - BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


Not Applicable


Yes Thursday, October 25, 2007


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Public HearingThursday, August 27, 2009

















		Agenda Request

		Letter Requesting Tabling of Petition

		08-06-2009 Planning Commission Public Hearing Minutes

		Planning Commission Recommendation






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Planning and Zoning Peter A. Frisina


Consideration of proposed revisions to the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan Future Use Map and the Land Use Element Text 


regarding the SR 74 North Corridor; and proposed amendments to the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance associated with the SR 74 


North Corridor.  This item was last discussed during the July 1, 2009 Board of Commissioners Workshop Meeting.


On January 22, 2009, the Board of Commissioners conducted a public hearing on the proposed Comprehensive Plan amendments and 


approved the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan Land Use Element Text and Map amendments; and authorized transmittal to the 


Atlanta Regional Commission and the Department of Community Affairs for coordination of regional and state review, prior to adoption, 


as required by the Georgia Planning Act of 1989.  The Atlanta Regional Commission and the Department of Community Affairs approved 


the proposed amendments to the Land Use Element Text and Map of the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan.  The Town of Tyrone 


also approved the revisions "in concept".  At the July 1, 2009 Board of Commissioners Workshop Meeting, staff was instructed to 


advertise the proposed amendments for August 6, 2009 in order to be considered by the Planning Commission, and for the Board of 


Commissioners consideration on August 27, 2009.  During the July 16, 2009 Planning Commission Workshop, Mr. Dennis Dutton 


explained that three (3) additional recommended revisions were made since the last review conducted by the Planning Commission.  


During the August 6, 2009 meeting, the Planning Commission recommended approval to the proposed revisions and proposed 


amendments.


Vote to adopt two documents: Ordinance No. 2009-02 amending the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance, providing for changes associated 


with the SR 74 North Corridor; Ordinance No. 2009-03 revising the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan Future Use Map and the Land 


Use Element Text regarding the SR 74 North Corridor.


Not Applicable.


Yes Wednesday, July 1, 2009


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Public HearingThursday, August 27, 2009







































 
  


 
STATE OF GEORGIA; 
COUNTY OF FAYETTE 
 
 ORDINANCE NO.  2009 - 02 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE FAYETTE COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE (1980), 
AS AMENDED, SPECIFICALLY ARTICLE IV (ESTABLISHEMENT OF DISTRICTS), ARTICLE 
VI (DISTRICT USE REQUIREMENTS), AND ARTICLE VII (CONDITIONAL USES, 
EXCEPTIONS, AND MODIFICATIONS) SO AS TO ADD THE BTP BUSINESS TECHNOLOGY 
PARK AND AMEND THE ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS OF SECTION 7-6. 
TRANSPORTATION CORRIDOR OVERLAY ZONE TO ADD CERTAIN ARCHITECTURAL 
STANDARDS SET FORTH THEREIN; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL 
CONFLICTING LAWS, ORDINANCES, AND RESOLUTIONS; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.  
  
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY AND 
IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED AS FOLLOWS: 


 
Section I.  The Fayette County Zoning Ordinance (1980), as amended, is hereby further 


amended as follows:  Article IV. Establishment of Districts by adding BTP Business Technology 
Park District; Article VI. District Use Requirements by adding Section 6-25. BTP Business 
Technology Park District (in its entirety) and by amending Section 6-17. Office-Institutional District 
by adding G. SR 74 North – East Side Special Development District (in its entirety); and Article 
VII.  Conditional Uses, Exceptions, and Modifications by adding BTP to Section 7-1. Conditional 
Use Approval, B. Conditional Uses Allowed, 11. Colleges and Universities and 37. Single-Family 
Residence; Section 7-6. Transportation Corridor Overlay, C. General State Route Overlay Zone 
by adding SR 74 North; and by adding Section 7-6. Transportation Corridor Overlay, D. SR 74 
North Overlay Zone (in its entirety).   


 
Section II.  The Fayette County Zoning Ordinance (1980), as amended, is hereby further 


amended by adding BTP Business Technology Park to Article IV. Establishment of Districts, and 
in lieu thereof, enacting number 25. of Article IV. to read as follows: 


 
ARTICLE IV.  ESTABLISHMENT OF DISTRICTS 


 
25. BTP    Business Technology Park   (Sec. 6-25) 
 
Section III.  The Fayette County Zoning Ordinance (1980), as amended, is hereby further 


amended by adding BTP Business Technology Park, in its entirety, to Article VI. District Use 
Requirements, and in lieu thereof, enacting Section 6-25. of Article IV. to read as follows: 


 
ARTICLE VI.  DISTRICT USE REQUIREMENTS 


 
6-25. BTP Business Technology Park District 


 
A. Purpose.  The purpose of the Business Technology Park District (BTP) is 


to provide a business/employment center in a planned campus setting 
with internal streets serving individual lots that contain a single business 
or multi-tenant buildings housing uses which are free from such 
nuisances as noise, vibration, smoke, gas, fume, odor, dust, radiation or 







 
  


other injurious or noxious conditions related to those uses.  Additional 
requirements would include architectural standards.  This district is to 
provide for high tech firms, light manufacturing/distribution firms, and 
professional firms with some support establishments (commercial and 
personal services) primarily for the employees.  


 
B. Permitted Uses.  The following Permitted Uses shall be allowed in the 


BTP Zoning District: 
 


  1. Business, professional, or government offices; 
    2. Scientific, medical, or research laboratories; 
    3. Business support centers and call centers; 
    4. Financial, credit, real estate and insurance establishments; 
         5. Publishing and printing; 
    6. Computer services and information technology; 
    7. Television/radio broadcasting studio, media productions and  


  telecommunication; 
 8. Training center, trade schools, and vocational centers; 
 9. Colleges and universities (classrooms and administration only); 


   10. Warehousing, wholesaling and/or distribution of products and 
merchandise, but not including retail sales of consumer goods 
such as are usually sold to the general public; 


   11. Shipping and courier service; and 
12. Light manufacturing and fabricating and assembling of products, 


including, but not limited to the following: 
a. Production of food, beverages, cosmetics, and 


pharmaceuticals, but not including fish and meat products, 
sauerkraut, vinegar, yeast, and rendering plants; 


b. Fabrication and assembly of metal, wood, cloth, and 
plastic products; and 


c. Production of computer and electronic components and 
products. 


 
Each BTP development will consist of two basic sets of uses: the 
business uses consisting of Permitted Uses 1. through 9. and the light 
manufacturing/distribution uses consisting of Permitted Uses 10. through 
12.     


C.    Conditional Uses.  The following Conditional Uses shall be allowed in the 
BTP Zoning District provided that all conditions specified in Section 7-1 
herein are met: 


 
   1. Single-Family Residence; and 
   2. Colleges and Universities.    
  


D.    Dimensional Requirements.   The minimum dimensional requirements in 
the BTP shall be as follows: 


 
  1. Minimum Site Area for a BTP Development: 20 acres 


    2. Lot Area:  87,120 square feet (two [2] acres) 
  3. Lot width:  500 feet 
  4. Front yard setback: 







 
  


 a. Major thoroughfare: 
 (1)  Major Arterial: 100 feet 
 (2) Arterial: 100 feet 
 (3) Collector: 80 feet 


 b. Minor thoroughfare: 65 feet 
  5. Rear yard setback: 25 feet 
  6. Side yard setback: 25 feet 
  7.  Buffer:  If the rear or side yard abuts a residential or A-R Zoning 


District, a minimum buffer of 75 feet shall be provided adjacent to 
the lot line, in addition to the required setback.  The setback shall 
be measured from the buffer. 


  The business use areas shall be separated from the light 
manufacturing/distribution use areas by a 30 foot buffer.     


  8. Height limit: 40 feet 
  9. Lot coverage limit, including structure and parking area:  70 


percent of total lot area. 
 10. Outside Storage and Refuse Area Requirements.  The following 


requirements shall apply to outside storage and refuse areas.  
Where this section contradicts any other requirement, the most 
restrictive shall apply. 


 a. Outside storage of merchandise, equipment, and parts 
shall be allowed in rear yards only, subject to screening, 
setback and buffer requirements.  


 b. All refuse areas shall be allowed in side or rear yards only, 
shall be screened, and comply with the required buffers 
and setbacks.  


11. Each BTP development shall have a minimum of 500 feet of 
frontage, and access, on an Arterial street as specified by the 
Fayette County Thoroughfare Plan. 


    
E. Other Requirements. 


    
1. Utilities.  All utilities shall be underground. 


  2. Multi-tenant Buildings. 
a. Location – Developable frontage on a major arterial road 


to a minimum depth of 300 feet shall be reserved for Multi-
tenant Buildings. 


b. Multi-tenant building in this area will be limited to the 
aforementioned light business uses.  


 
 


c.  Support Uses – In addition to the Permitted Uses in 
section B, no more than 20 percent of the floor area of an 
individual multi-tenant building may consist of business 
operations providing support services for the larger 
development.  Permitted support service uses include: 


 
   (i) Restaurant/restaurant take-out (No drive-through, 


drive-in, or free standing facilities shall be 
allowed);  


     (ii) Personal Services; 







 
  


  (iii) Convenience store (no gasoline sales); 
  (iv) Blueprinting, graphic, and copying service; 
  (v) Office and computer supplies; and 
  (vi) Cellular phone/communication device supplies 


  and service.  
 


 F. Rezoning Requirements. The following is required for a rezoning request 
for the BTP Zoning District in addition to what is normally required for a 
rezoning request: 


 
  1. A Development Plan is required for the rezoning petition and will 


take the place of the required Concept Plan.  The Development 
Plan, as approved, shall establish the layout and uses planned for 
the development.  Any change in the approved Development Plan, 
which affects the intent and character of the development, the 
land use pattern, the location or dimensions of streets, or similar 
substantial changes, must be reviewed and approved by the 
Board of Commissioners upon the recommendation of the 
Planning Commission.  A request for a revision of the 
Development Plan shall be supported by a written statement as to 
why the revisions are necessary. 
The Development Plan must include what is normally required on 
the Concept Plan as well as the following; 


a. A delineation of the business use area and the light 
manufacturing/distribution use area including the acreage within 
each area and the 30 foot separation buffer; 


b. A delineation of the internal transportation network including 
roads, multi-use paths, and inter-parcel access/roads as 
applicable. 


c. Requirements of any overlay zone which is applicable to the 
property; and 


d. Indicate and label existing structures to remain.  
 
Section III.  The Fayette County Zoning Ordinance (1980), as amended, is hereby further 


amended by adding BTP to Article VII. Conditional Uses, Exceptions, and Modifications, and in 
lieu thereof, enacting Section 7-1.,B.,11. and 7-1.,B.,37.of Article VII. to read as follows: 


 
 
 


ARTICLE VII.  CONDITIONAL USES, EXCEPTIONS, AND MODIFICATIONS 
 
11. Colleges and Universities.  (Allowed in the A-R and BTP Zoning Districts). 
 


a. The lot area shall be at least ten (10) acres. 
b. Such use shall be permitted only on a lot which fronts on a Major Thoroughfare 


as specified by the Fayette County Thoroughfare Plan. 
c. A minimum 50 foot buffer plus the required setbacks shall separate all buildings 


and use areas from any residential or A-R Zoning District. 
d. Minimum setbacks for structures and use areas (excluding parking areas) are as 


follows: 
(1) Front yard: 100 feet 







 
  


(2) Side yard:   50 feet 
(3) Rear yard: 100 feet 


e. Uses and/or structures incidental to colleges and universities such as a 
gymnasium, dormitory, and/or athletic field shall be allowed provided all buildings 
and use areas meet the minimum setback and buffer requirements specified in 
subsections c. and d., above. 


 
37. Single-Family Residence. (Allowed in the C-C, C-H, M-1, M-2, O-I, and BTP Zoning 


Districts). 
 


a. Said residence shall be a single-family detached residence. 
b. Said residence shall not be less than 1,200 square feet, and said residence shall 


not be allowed in subdivision developments as defined by the Subdivision 
Regulations of Fayette County. 


 
Section IV.  The Fayette County Zoning Ordinance (1980), as amended, is hereby further 


amended by adding SR 74 North, to Section 7-6.,C. of Article VII. Conditional Uses, Exceptions, 
and Modifications, and in lieu thereof, enacting Section 7-6.,C. of Article VII. to read as follows: 


 
ARTICLE VII.  CONDITIONAL USES, EXCEPTIONS, AND MODIFICATIONS 


 
7-6. Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone 
 


C.  General State Route Overlay Zone.  All property and/or development which have 
road frontage and/or access on State routes with nonresidential use or zoning 
shall be subject to the following regulations, in addition to the zoning district 
requirements and other development regulations which apply.  This Overlay Zone 
specifically excludes: SR 54 West, SR 85 North, and SR 74 North for which other 
Overlay Zones have been established herein.  The Architectural Standards of this 
Overlay Zone Specifically excludes the L-C zoning district, for which other 
architectural standards have been established. 


 
Section V. The Fayette County Zoning Ordinance (1980), as amended, is hereby further 


amended by adding SR 74 North Overlay Zone, in its entirety, to Section 7-6.,D. of Article VII. 
Conditional Uses, Exceptions, and Modifications, and in lieu thereof, enacting Section 7-6.,D. SR 
74 North Overlay Zone of Article VII. to read as follows: 


 
7-6. Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone 
 
D. SR 74 North Overlay Zone.  All property and/or development which have frontage on 


and/or access to SR 74 North with nonresidential use or zoning shall be subject to the 
requirements of the SR 74 North Overlay Zone.  The intent of the overlay is to set 
standards specific to SR 74 North from Sandy Creek Road to the Fulton County line to 
achieve the goals of the SR 74 North Overlay District contained in the Fayette County 
Comprehensive Plan. 


 
1. Purpose.  The purpose of the SR 74 North Overlay Zone is to achieve the 


following: 
a. To maintain the efficient traffic flow of SR 74 North as the 


County’s main connection to Interstate 85;    
b. To enhance and maintain the aesthetic qualities of the corridor, as 







 
  


it is the gateway into Fayette County; and 
c. To protect existing and future residential areas in the SR 74 North 


corridor. 
2. Access. The following requirements shall apply to all nonresidential 


property and/or development within the corridor: 
a. West Side of SR 74 North Access and Internal Roadways. An 


internal collector road connecting all three of the large tracts 
identified in the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan, in the SR 74 
North Overlay District properties will be required, from the existing 
median break at Thompson Road south to Kirkley Road.  The 
remaining large tract in the unincorporated County will be limited 
to one (1) right in/right out curb cut on SR 74 North for the 
construction of a street to provide internal access in the tract.  
Lots created in conjunction with the development of these tracts 
will not be allowed individual curb cuts on SR 74 North or Kirkley 
Road.      
The design of the collector road will require left turn lanes at the 
intersections of SR 74 North and Kirkley Road as well as all 
intersections internal to developments.  Final design approval of 
these intersections will be made by the Department of Engineering 
and the Department of Public Works. 


b. East Side of SR 74 North Access and Internal Roadways.  
 To maintain efficient and safe operations on SR 74 North it is 


required that a parallel service drive be developed approximately 
400 feet east of SR 74 North.  This service drive must be 
constructed when improvements are made to the portion of the 
property.  The service drive will connect to the service drive being 
developed in Fairburn from Milam Road southwards to the Fayette 
County line. Within Fayette County this service drive will extend 
from the Fulton County line into the property just north of the golf 
recreation facility.  In addition, all residential properties proposed 
to be accessed through non-residentially zoned properties along 
SR 74 must be accessed via a public road built to County 
standards and dedicated to the County. Those affected properties 
are identified and addressed in the Fayette County 
Comprehensive Plan.  


c. West Side of SR 74 North Multi-use Path System.  In order to 
provide for alternative modes of transportation (including 
accommodation of golf cart, bicycle and pedestrian traffic), a 
multi-use path system is required as an integral component of site 
development. The multi-use path system will connect all three (3) 
of the large tracts identified in the Fayette County Comprehensive 
Plan, in the SR 74 North Overlay District, and will be constructed 
in conjunction with the roads.  Said multi-use path system must 
connect to any existing or proposed external multi-use paths. In 
the cases where a planned future multi-use path is to be located 
on abutting parcels, an alignment shall be established and the 
internal facilities shall be developed so as to provide for 
connection at the property line. 
On roadways with a planned multi-use path system the public 
right-of-way will be used for location of the path system 







 
  


components. The path will consist of a ten (10) foot wide paved 
surface and stabilized shoulders that extend two feet beyond the 
paved surface.  Path construction will consist of a minimum of four 
inches of gravel base with two inches of asphalt.  Final design 
approval of the multi-use path design and construction in the right-
of-way will be made by the Department of Engineering and the 
Department of Public Works. 


3. Dimensional Requirements.  Unless otherwise specified, these standards 
shall apply to all nonresidential zoning districts within the areas described 
above. 
a. All impervious surfaces, other than approved access, shall comply 


with the following: 
(1) S.R. 74 North (Major Arterial):  50 feet from the right-of-


way and a minimum of ten (10) feet from the side property 
lines 


(2) Minor Arterial:  35 feet from the right-of-way 
(3) Collector:  25 feet from the right-of-way  


  (4) Local:   15 feet from the right-of-way 
b. Setbacks will be as follows: 


(1) Front yard setback on S.R. 74 North: 100 feet                     
   


c. Impervious surface:  Per zoning district   
d. Berms for nonresidential zoning districts: Berms, when required as 


a condition of zoning, shall be a minimum of four (4) feet in height 
and shall be placed to the inside of the applicable buffer.   


4. Architectural Standards. These standards shall apply to all nonresidential 
development within this Overlay Zone. 
1. West Side of SR 74 North Architectural Standards:    
 a. All buildings shall be constructed of brick/brick veneer, 


wood, fiber-cement siding (i.e.: Hardi-plank), rock, stone, 
cast-stone, split-face concrete masonry unit (rough 
textured face concrete block), architectural precast 
concrete wall panels, stucco (including synthetic stucco) or 
any architecturally engineered facades which simulate 
these materials. 


  b. The design of accessory structures shall be consistent 
with and coordinate with the architectural style inherent in 
the primary structure on the property. 


 c. No horizontal length of a roofline shall exceed 50 linear 
feet without a variation in elevation.  Said variation in 
elevation shall not be less than two (2) feet.  


d. No blank or unarticulated horizontal length of a building 
facade shall exceed 25 linear feet without a variation in 
architectural elements, including but not limited to, building 
materials, colors, textures, offsets, or changes in planes. 


2. East Side of SR 74 North Architectural Standards:   
a. A pitched peaked (gable or hip) roof with a minimum pitch 


of four and one-half (4.5) inches in one (1) foot.  A pitched 
mansard roof facade with a minimum pitch of four and 
one-half (4.5) inches in one (1) foot and a minimum height 
of eight (8) feet around the entire perimeter of the 







 
  


structure can be used if the structure is two (2) stories or 
more or the use of a pitched peaked roof would cause the 
structure to not meet the applicable height limit 
requirements.  The mansard roof facade must be of a 
residential character with the appearance of shingles, 
slate or terra cotta:    


b. All buildings shall be constructed in a residential character 
of fiber-cement siding (ie: Hardiplank), wood siding, wood 
textured vinyl siding, brick/brick veneer, rock, stone, cast-
stone, or stucco (including synthetic stucco);  


c. Framed doors and windows of a residential character.  To 
maintain a residential character, large display windows 
shall give the appearance of smaller individual panes and 
framing consistent with the standard residential grid 
pattern for doors and windows;  


d. The design of accessory structures shall reflect and 
coordinate with the general architectural style inherent in 
the primary structure on the property including the roof 
pitch. 


 5. Landscape Requirements: In addition to the standard requirements of the 
Landscape Ordinance, the following landscape requirements shall apply 
to the Overlay Zone: 


a. Street Frontage.   
SR 74 (Major Arterial) - Landscape area: 50 feet along the 
right-of-way of SR 74 North.  The first 25 feet as measured 
from the right-of-way is for required landscape planting 
only. The remaining 25 feet may be used for septic system 
placement; underground stormwater detention systems; 
and the following stormwater management facilities/ 
structures, if designed in full accordance with the 
specifications provided in the most current edition of the 
Georgia Stormwater Management Manual: vegetated 
channels, overland flow filtration/ groundwater recharge 
zone, enhanced swales, filter strips, and grass channels.  
Septic systems and stormwater structures shall be 
exclusive of each other and the minimum distance of 
separation between wastewater and stormwater structures 
shall be established by the Environmental Health 
Department and the County Engineer.  
Minor Arterial – Landscape area: 35 feet along the right-of-
way of a minor arterial road.    
Collector - Landscape area: 25 feet along the right-of-way 
of a collector road.    
Local - Landscape area: 15 feet along the dedicated 
right-of-way of a local street.  


b.   Side Yard Landscape Area:  Ten (10) feet in depth along 
side property lines unless adjacent to a residential district 
where buffer requirements will apply.  


7. Lighting.   Lighting shall be designed in such a way as to meet the 
following requirements:   
a. Shielding standards. Lighting shall be placed in such a fashion as 







 
  


to be directed away from any adjacent roadways for nearby 
residential areas.  


b. Fixture height standards. Lighting fixtures shall be a maximum of 
35 feet in height within the parking lot and shall be a maximum of 
ten (10) feet in height within non-vehicular pedestrian areas. 


  8.  Additional Requirements. The following requirements shall be in addition 
to all district requirements. Where this section contradicts any other 
requirement, the most restrictive shall apply. 
a. All refuse areas and equipment shall be allowed in the side or rear 


yards only and must be screened. 
b. All roof top mechanical equipment and satellite dish antennas 


shall be visually screened from adjacent roads and property zoned 
residential or A-R.  The screen shall extend to the full height of the 
objects being screened.  


c. Bay doors shall not be allowed to directly face SR 74 North. 
d. All utilities shall be underground. 


 
  Section VI.  If any part of this Ordinance shall be declared unconstitutional by the 
judgment of any court of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality shall not affect the 
remainder of this enactment, and such remainder of this enactment shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
  Section VII.  All laws, ordinances, and resolutions, or parts thereof, which conflict with 
the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
  Section VIII.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon its approval by the Board of 
Commissioners. 
 
SO ORDAINED, this 27th day of August, 2009 


 
                            FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD 


OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
  


_________________________________ 
Jack Smith, Chairman 


 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Clerk/Deputy Clerk 







 
 
STATE OF GEORGIA; 


COUNTY OF FAYETTE  


 


ORDINANCE 


NO.  2009 - 03 


 


 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 


TEXT AND MAP; TO REVISE THE LAND USE ELEMENT IN ITS ENTIRETY.  


 BE IT ORDTAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY, 


GEORGIA, AND IT IS HEREBY ENACTED PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF THE 


SAME THAT THE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE 


PLAN TEXT AND MAP AS IT PERTAINS TO THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP AND 


NARRATIVE BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 
 


Section 1. By deleting the Land Use Element in its entirety and replacing it with a new Land Use 


Element, to be read as follows: 


 


 


LAND USE ELEMENT 
 


“Planned growth is more desirable than uncontrolled growth, and more profitable; public and 


private powers can be joined in partnership in a process to realize the plan.” 


         - Ian Mcharg  


 


 


 


INTRODUCTION  
       


The Land Use Element functions as a guide for county officials (both elected and appointed), the 


general public, the development community, and other interested parties as to the ultimate 


pattern of development in the unincorporated county.  This Element provides the opportunity to 


inventory existing land use patterns and trends; to illustrate future patterns of growth, based on 


community needs and desires; and to develop goals, policies, and strategies for future land use 


that support and reflect the economic, housing, natural and historic resources, community 


facilities and services, and transportation and goals and policies of the Comprehensive Growth 


Management Plan.       


 


In practice, this is the most visible and often used element in the Comprehensive Growth 


Management Plan.  Although all general plan elements carry equal weight, the land use element 


is often perceived as being the most representative of “the general plan.”  In addition to 


establishing the county’s development policy in broad terms, the land use element plays a pivotal 


role in the zoning, subdivision, and public works decisions, as these are the primary tools for 


implementing the land use element.   


 


 


 







The Land Use Element focuses on improving quality of life, and providing opportunities to 


protect and preserve rural character while allowing for reasonable and compatible growth.  The 


policies within this chapter work together with the Future Land Use Plan Map to provide a guide 


for future development by use, size, density, and location.  These plan elements are represented 


on the Map by color designations.  They present a policy guideline for future development within 


unincorporated Fayette County. 


 


EXISTING LAND USE  


  


The intent of a land use plan is to guide development based on an understanding of the county’s 


current development status and future development trends.  A key element in this process is an 


inventory of existing land use.  A knowledge and understanding of how land in the county is 


presently being used establishes the foundation for the preparation of a land use plan.  


 


Fayette County’s total land area is 127, 670 acres.  Of this total, approximately 33,406 acres (or -


26 percent) lies within the incorporated limits of Fayette County’s five municipalities.  The 


remaining 94,264 acres lie within unincorporated Fayette County. The following section 


provides an inventory and assessment of existing land use in unincorporated Fayette County.  


The county’s Geographical Information System, supplemented by windshield surveys and area 


knowledge, was used to develop existing land use data.  This section identifies the products 


resulting from a typical land use survey: (1) a map showing existing land use (Map L-1); and (2) 


statistics describing the amount of land in each land use category (Table L-1).   


 


The following land use categories, as defined by the Department of Community Affairs, were 


used to survey existing land use in unincorporated Fayette County: 


 


 Residential: In unincorporated Fayette County, the predominant use of land within the 


residential category is for single-family dwelling units.  This category is further divided 


into the following categories: One Acre Minimum Lot, Two Acre Minimum Lot, Five 


Acre Minimum Lot, and Mobile Home Park 


 


Commercial: This category is for land dedicated to non-industrial business uses, 


including retail sales, office, service and entertainment facilities.  Commercial uses may 


be located as a single use in one building or grouped together in a shopping center or 


office building.   


 


Industrial: This category is for land dedicated to manufacturing facilities, processing 


plants, factories, assembly operations, warehousing and wholesale trade facilities, mining 


or mineral extraction activities, or other similar uses. 


 


 Public/Institutional: This category includes certain state, federal or local government 


uses, and institutional land uses.  Government uses include city halls and government 


installations, etc.  Examples of institutional land uses include colleges, churches, 


cemeteries, hospitals, etc.  Facilities that are publicly owned, but would be classified 


more accurately in another land use category, should not be included in this category.  


For example, publicly Park/Recreation/Conservation category; landfills should fall under 


the Industrial category; and general office buildings containing government offices 


should be placed in the Commercial category.  


 







  


 Transportation/Communication/Utilities: This category includes such uses as power 


generation plants, railroad facilities, radio towers, public transit stations, telephone 


switching stations, airports, port facilities or other similar uses.  


 


 Park/Recreation/Conservation: This category is for land dedicated to active or passive 


recreational uses. These areas may be either publicly or privately owned and may include 


playgrounds, public parks, nature preserves, wildlife management areas, national forests, 


golf courses, recreation centers and similar uses. 


  


Agriculture/Forestry: This category is for land dedicated to farming (fields, lots, 


pastures, farmsteads, specialty farms, livestock production, etc.), agriculture, or 


commercial timber or pulpwood harvesting. 


 


Undeveloped: This category is for land not developed for a specific use or land that was 


developed for a particular use but that has been abandoned for that use.  This category 


includes woodlands or pasture land (not in agricultural crop, livestock or commercial 


timber production), undeveloped portions of residential subdivisions and industrial parks, 


water bodies (lakes, rivers, etc.), and locations of structures that have been vacant for 


some time and allowed to become deteriorated or dilapidated. 


 


Map L-1, provides a generalized picture of how land in Fayette County is currently being used.  


Table L-1 lists the total estimated acreage of each of the land use categories illustrated on Map 


L- 1.   


 


TABLE L-1 


EXISTING LAND USE DISTRIBUTION,  SUMMER 2003 


UNINCORPORATED FAYETTE COUNTY 


Land Use Acres Percent of Area 


Residential 42,990 45.61% 


Commercial & Office 516 .55% 


Industrial 581 .62% 


Public/Institutional 2,048 2.17% 


Transportation/Communication/Utilities 92 .10% 


Park/Recreation/Conservation 1,466 1.55% 


Agriculture & Forestry 24,701 26.20% 


Undeveloped 21,870 23.20% 


Total Acreage 94,264 100.00% 


Source: Fayette County Planning Department 


 


 


As Table L-1 indicates, unincorporated Fayette County’s land area totals approximately 94,264 


acres, of which 21,870 acres (23.2 percent) are classified as undeveloped.   


 







Residential land use, comprising 46.61 percent of the unincorporated county’s developed 


acreage, is the predominant land use in the unincorporated county.  This land use is characterized 


by single family dwellings on lots ranging from a minimum of one acre to lots of five acres or 


more.  Single family dwellings on lots of a minimum one acre are developed in conjunction with 


the availability of public water.  These areas are concentrated in the vicinity of the various 


municipalities and in the northern end of the county east of SR 92.    Lots that are a minimum of 


two acres in size are further removed from the urban areas, where county water may or may not 


be available.  Residential land uses in the southern end of the county are characterized by single 


family dwellings on lots of five acres or larger.  This is due not only to the lack of available 


infrastructure, but to the support and maintenance of the rural environment that is characteristic 


of this area.  There are seven mobile home parks in the unincorporated county.  These parks 


contain approximately 1,460 mobile home pads. 


 


 


 


 







MAP L-1 - EXISTING LAND USE 


 
Source: Fayette County GIS 


Commercial and Office land uses comprise approximately .55 percent of the total land area.  


Commercial activity is generally limited to small, neighborhood, convenience-retail centers.   


These centers are characterized by a gas station/convenience store.  Two areas, SR 85 North and 







SR 54 West adjacent to Peachtree City, contain a mix of small shopping centers, offices and 


service establishments.  Office uses are generally concentrated along SR 85 North and SR 54 


West where an overlay zone allows the conversion of existing residences to office uses. 


 


Industrial land use comprises .62 percent of the total acreage.  The majority of industrial 


activity is centered north of Fayetteville along SR 85 North (BFI Landfill property, numerous 


auto salvage facilities, and Kenwood Business Park) and SR 314 (Lee Center).  Major industrial 


land uses and parks are found within the cities of Fayetteville, Peachtree City and Tyrone. 


 


Public/Institutional land uses, comprising nearly 2.17 percent of the total developed acreage, 


consist mainly of churches, schools, and county-owned facilities and property.  There are over 


100 churches in the unincorporated county as well as four existing or planned high schools, four 


existing or planned middle schools, and four elementary schools.  Existing or future water tank 


sites are located on Ellis Road, SR 92 North Porter Road, and Summerfield Place. A large water 


treatment plant is located on Antioch Road. 


 


Transportation/Communication/Utilities land uses comprise .1 percent of the land area.  Five 


utility substations are located in the unincorporated area.  These substations are located on SR 54 


West, Bernhard Road, Ebenezer Church Road, Friendship Church Road, and New Hope Road.  


 


Park/Recreation/Conservation land uses comprise 1.55 percent of the land area and are 


represented by McCurry Park, Kiwanis Park, Lake Horton Park, Starr’s Mill Pak, and future 


parkland on Kenwood Road.  This area also includes the Lake Horton Reservoir and County 


wetland mitigation sites. 


 


Agricultural/Forestry lands comprise 26.2 percent of the land area.  Located throughout the 


unincorporated county but mainly in the southern end of the county, these lands are generally 


characterized by small farms, plant nurseries, commercial timber, pulpwood harvesting or large 


residential lots with associated horse or cattle raising/grazing.  All of these properties are 


participating in the Conservation Use Covenant with the county.  Approximately 24,701 acres 


are under the Conservation Use Covenant.    


 


Undeveloped land comprises 23.2 percent of the land area.  Some of these large undeveloped 


tracts contain agricultural and forest lands but are not participating in the Conservation Use 


Covenant with the county. 


 


EXISTING LAND USE ASSESSMENT 


 


The existing land use pattern in Fayette County is the result of many individual and policy 


decisions over many years.  These decisions are based on physical constraints and opportunities, 


and outside market forces.  This section discusses the factors leading to the existing pattern of 


development and the market forces in effect that seek to influence land use decisions. 


 


Factors Leading to the Existing Pattern of Development 
 


Throughout most of its history, Fayette County has had an agricultural-based economy.  Farms 


producing both crops and livestock, dominated the landscape.   In less than a generation, Fayette 


County changed from a rural, farm-oriented county on the far fringes of the Atlanta area to a 


primarily residential, suburban, bedroom commuter-oriented county.  Fayette County’s 







population grew by 115 percent between 1980 to 1990.  From 1990 to 2000, the county grew by 


another 46 percent.  This twenty-year period saw the county’s population grow from 29,043 


residents in 1980 to 91,263 residents in 2000.  Much of this growth occurred within municipal 


limits, often accommodated through annexation.  Map L-2  shows the annexation activity by 


municipality since 1985.  


 


Transportation Improvements.  In the last 20 years, Fayette County saw the widening of SR 


85 North, SR 74 North, SR 54 between Peachtree City and Fayetteville, and SR 314 from 


Fayetteville to SR 279 from two lane roads to four lane divided highways.  SR 74 North is the 


county’s nearest access to Interstate 85 and the Atlanta metropolitan area.  SR 314 is the 


county’s most direct route to Hartsfield International Airport.  Such transportation improvements 


allowed the movement of vehicles into and out of the county.  Fayette County was now within 


commuting distance of Atlanta and, particularly, Hartsfield International Airport.  Besides the 


influx of new (commuting) residents, increasing numbers of existing Fayette County residents 


either converted to part-time farming while holding regular jobs to which they themselves 


commuted, or they sold their farm holdings for subdivision development.  


 


Infrastructure Development.  The availability of infrastructure, and the lack thereof, has also 


contributed to Fayette County’s existing land use pattern.  While not available county-wide, 


public water service is provided by the Fayette County Water System to portions of the 


unincorporated county as well as the municipalities of Peachtree City, Tyrone and Woolsey.  


Sanitary sewerage service is available only within the cities of Fayetteville and Peachtree City 


and within limited areas of Tyrone. Such infrastructure availability allows these cities to offer the 


highest residential densities and to provide for nonresidential uses in the form of office parks, 


commercial centers, and industrial parks.  


 


No public sewer is available in unincorporated Fayette County.  Development in the 


unincorporated area relies on individual septic systems for on-site sewage disposal.  The soil and 


space requirements of septic systems necessitate a larger development area.  Therefore, the 


unincorporated county is characterized by low density single-family residential lots.  Fayette 


County as a whole, however, is able to offer residents a wide choice of housing opportunities, 


from smaller lot, high end single family homes, duplexes, and apartments in the cities to larger 


single-family lots and sprawling farmsteads in the unincorporated county.    


 


Environmental Constraints.  Development constraints, associated with environmentally 


sensitive land, are generally characterized by poor soils, wetlands, and flood plains typical of 


streams and other water bodies.  The county is home to seven major water supply streams 


(Antioch Creek, Flat Creek, Flint River, Horton Creek, Line Creek, Whitewater Creek, and 


Woolsey Creek), 16 named tributaries to these water supply streams, and a large number of 


minor unnamed streams.  Development in the southern end of the county, which serves as the 


confluence of many of these streams, is impacted by the relatively low topography, poor soils, 


and a high water table.   







MAP L-2 - MUNICIPAL ANNEXATION 


 
Source: Fayette County Planning Department 


 


Market Forces 
 







Local and regional influences are working to exert pressures on the rural landscape that is 


unincorporated Fayette County.  Land prices continue to rise as residential land uses creep closer 


and closer to rural areas.  As land prices rise, it becomes economically unfeasible to continue to 


hold land vacant or use it for agricultural purposes.  


 


With the increase in population and income, market forces are working to provide for the 


prerequisite commercial development, usually in the form of small shopping areas along major 


highway corridors. Convenience facilities (e.g. the quick stop store located on transportation 


routes, dispensing gasoline and/or the corner grocery) will continue to request rezonings around 


the county in response to perceived market demand.  Improperly planned and located, such 


commercial uses can lead to traffic problems, deterioration of neighborhoods, and unsightly 


developments.  The proliferation of these types of stores causes keen competition among them.  


The nature of such competition is that some stores do not survive.  The county is then left with 


empty storefronts which become eyesores scattered around the county. 


 


FUTURE LAND USE DEMAND 
 


The following table provides projections of the amount of land which will be required for each of 


the various land uses through the year 2025.  The projections are based on the population 


projections presented in the Population Element of this comprehensive plan.  In determining 


future land use demand, ratios of existing land use per population were calculated and applied to 


the number of new residents projected to reside in the unincorporated county through the year 


2025.   


 


While sufficient undeveloped land exists to accommodate the projected growth, the choice of 


land is often determined by access to infrastructure and suitable roads, as well as by ownership 


patterns and owner expectations. 


 


 


 


TABLE L-2 


PROJECTED LAND USE DISTRIBUTION 


UNINCORPORATED FAYETTE COUNTY 


Land Use 2025 Acreage 
% of 


2025 Total 


Residential 76,867 77,017 82.16 82.32% 


Commercial & Office 1,502 1,352 1.61 1.45% 


Industrial 591 .63% 


Public Facilities/Institutional 992 1.06% 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







TABLE L-2 Continued 


PROJECTED LAND USE DISTRIBUTION 


UNINCORPORATED FAYETTE COUNTY 


Land Use 2025 Acreage 
% of 


2025 Total 


Parks, Recreation and Conservation Areas 13,512 14.44% 


Transportation/Communication/Utilities 96 .10% 


Total Acreage* 93,560 100.00% 


* Total Acreage does not include Lake Horton (740 acres) 


Source: Fayette County Planning Department 


 


FUTURE LAND USE MAP AND NARRATIVE 
 


The Land Use Map for the Comprehensive Plan depicts the proposed general uses of land in the 


unincorporated portion of Fayette County.  It functions as the official county policy on the 


allocation and distribution of different land uses.  Different color shadings are used on the map to 


indicate different categories of recommended future land use, with the color shadings defined in 


the map’s legend.  


 


The land uses shown on the map generally follow key geographic features, such as roads, 


streams, open spaces, but in some cases they transition at existing lot lines.  Development will 


normally follow these boundaries.  However, the final boundaries may vary according to the 


merits of a development proposal and whether it meets the intent of the plan’s vision as a whole.   


The county’s Zoning Map implements the Comprehensive Plan land use designations by 


ordinance, at a much more detailed, parcel-specific level.  In evaluating a specific development 


proposal, the direct impacts of the project on adjacent and nearby properties, transportation, the 


environment, and public facilities will be identified.  The resolution of any impacts is critical if a 


proposal is to receive favorable consideration. In order to achieve the density ranges indicated in 


the Plan, these direct impacts must be mitigated to the satisfaction of the county.  


 


The Future Land Use Map of this Comprehensive Plan uses eight major land use designations to 


depict the types of land uses that are allowed in the county: Residential, Commercial, Office, 


Industrial, Public Facilities/Institutional, Conservation Areas, Parks and Recreation, and 


Transportation, Communication and Utilities.  The following provides a brief description of  


each of the land use categories illustrated on the Future Land Use Map (see inside back cover).    


 


Residential 


 


This category includes all properties with the principal structure designed for human habitation, 


Appropriate density ranges, in terms of dwelling units per acre, are recommended in this Plan 


and are shown on the Land Use Plan Map.  The county’s residential density pattern has generally 


developed from one of higher densities in the northern portion to lower densities in the southern 


portion.  This is due to the proximity of the northern county to the higher density development in 


Clayton County and the availability of public services.  The southern portion of the county is 


more characteristic of the more rural adjacent counties of Spalding and Coweta and offers fewer 


public services.  Transition areas between these two land uses are provided.   


 







The plan’s general intent regarding future residential development is to (1) channel higher 


density development (less than one acre) into areas served by public water and sewer; (2) 


channel lower density development into areas served by public  water; (3) limit development in 


those areas of the county which lack public facilities.     


 


The residential land use category is broken down into seven sub-categories as described below: 


 


Agricultural Residential: This category identifies areas with a residential density of one 


dwelling unit per five acres or more.  The Estate Residential Zoning District is 


appropriate for this area.  The area has a general lack of public water service, the 


presence of unpaved and/or unimproved roads, and a long-standing characteristic of large 


lot residential development, often in conjunction with an agricultural activity.  These 


factors, along with environmental constraints due to the presence of numerous streams 


and associated poor soils, dictate large lot development. Agricultural Residential land use 


is shown as occurring in the southern portion of the county where the aforementioned 


factors exist to the greatest degree in Fayette County.  


 


Rural Residential: These are areas which allow a low intensity residential density of one 


dwelling unit per two to three acres.  County water is available in some areas; the 


Conservation Subdivision (CS) Zoning District is appropriate in this area.  This category 


offers larger lot development of a residential, rather than agricultural, nature.   The Land 


Use Plan Map generally identifies the Whitewater Creek Drainage Basin and the area 


between Low Density Residential to the north and Agricultural Residential to the south as 


appropriate for this land use category. 


 


Low Density Residential: This category identifies areas of intended residential 


subdivision development in a density range of one dwelling unit per one to two acres.  


County water is generally available; the Conservation Subdivision (CS) Zoning District is 


appropriate for this area.   Low Density Residential land uses are located in the northern 


portion of the county and in areas adjacent to the cities of Fayetteville and Tyrone.  These 


areas represent the most urbanized areas of the unincorporated county and offer the 


greatest number of public services (water, access).   


 


Low Medium, Medium, and High Density Residential: These categories consist of 


residential uses with more than one unit per acre, from duplexes and ½ acre lots up to 


five units per acre.  There are no areas designated  Low Medium, Medium, and High 


Density Residential at this time due to the lack of public sewer in the unincorporated 


county. 


 


Mobile Home Park: This category designates mobile homes in mobile home parks. 


 


Office 
 


The Office land use category designates office development which can be located as stand-alone 


structures or in office parks or centers.  Office land use is shown as occurring generally in three 


areas of the unincorporated county: (1) along the east side of SR 314 between the Fayetteville 


city limits and the Fernwood Mobile Home Park; (2) along SR 54 between Fayetteville and 


Peachtree City as an overlay district (see Transportation Corridors) and, in particular, in the 







vicinity of Fayette Community Hospital; and (3) along SR 54 West just outside the Peachtree 


City limits between SR 54 West and Sumner Road South. 


 


The area along SR 314 provides a transition area from the commercial and industrial 


development oriented to SR 85 to the residential uses on the west side of SR 314.  The Office use 


designation in the vicinity of the hospital allows for the location of associated uses.  Office uses 


north of the hospital along Sandy Creek Road terminate at the unnamed stream just north of the 


hospital entrance; office areas extending west along SR 54 are bounded by the proposed school 


access road to the north and the area between the proposed high school site and existing hospital 


property.  The Sumner Road area serves as a transition area between the commercial areas to the 


east across SR 54 and the residential areas to the west in Peachtree City.  This area is limited to 


the area south of Land Lot 70, District 7 and the limits of Peachtree City. 


 


Commercial 


 


This category identifies all property where business and trade are conducted, both retail and 


wholesale, and accessory use areas, such as parking.  The Land Use Plan Map seeks to provide 


necessary commercial activity within a reasonable distance to unincorporated county residents.  


However, county policy recognizes that major commercial facilities should be located within 


incorporated areas where infrastructure is available and population densities are most 


concentrated.  The county should attempt to discourage additional commercial development 


along major roadways, as strip commercial development is neither desirable from a safety 


standpoint nor attractive.   


 


The Land Use Plan Map illustrates the concentration of commercial land uses in various 


locations throughout the unincorporated area.   The land used areas vary from smaller, 


neighborhood commercial areas to larger, concentrated areas of commercial activity.  The 


following section provides a brief description of these designated commercial areas.  


 


SR 54 and Corinth Road:   This area represents existing, zoned commercial land use of a 


neighborhood convenience nature.   The adjacent subdivisions exclude the expansion of this area 


to the north; Corinth Road on the south side of SR 54 remains an unpaved dirt road. No 


expansion of the existing commercial zoning is recommended. 


 


SR 85 and Bernhard Road: This area houses a convenience store, a motorcycle shop, a pesticide 


control company, and a fire station, thus providing neighborhood convenience services to the 


surrounding area.  Located in the less-populated southern portion of the county, no expansion of 


this area is recommended.     


 


SR 314 and SR 138: As an entrance to Fayette County, this area is a mix of nonresidential 


developed land and vacant land zoned for commercial uses.  The opportunity exists here for infill 


development and redevelopment of older establishments. 


 


SR 92 and Westbridge Road: This area is a mix of old and new nonresidential development.  The 


opportunity exists here for infill development and redevelopment of older establishments. 


 


SR 54 and Tyrone Road: Long considered a nonresidential node in Fayette County, this area’s 


proximity to Fayette Community Hospital and a new high school site makes it a candidate for 







nonresidential development.  The Land Use Plan supports these future uses by designating a mix 


of commercial and office uses in this area. 


 


SR 54 and Sumner Road (south): This area is a mix of commercial retail and office uses with 


well-established boundaries - it is defined by the existing commercially zoned tracts south of 


Land Lot 70, District 7 and the limits of Peachtree City. 


 


SR 74 and Redwine Road: Currently undeveloped, this area is defined  by the existing 


nonresidential zoning.  No expansion beyond the existing zoned areas is recommended. 


 


SR 85 North of Fayetteville: A nonresidential corridor, this area extends from the city limits of 


Fayetteville north to the county line.  It provides for a variety of nonresidential uses including 


commercial, office, industrial, and service.  The area contains opportunity for infill, 


redevelopment and new development.   


 


SR 54 East of Fayetteville: The existing nonresidential development consists of commercial, 


office and industrial uses.  Commercial land uses are indicated from the city limits of 


Fayetteville east to McDonough Road.  On the south side of SR 54, this commercial activity is 


limited to the properties fronting on SR 54 only for a depth necessary to provide adequate 


acreage for commercial uses.  This allows for the coordination of commercial uses along the 


frontage of SR 54 with residential uses to the rear.  Office land uses then continue on the north 


side of SR 54 opposite McCurry Park.  


 


SR 85 South of Fayetteville: This area extends from the city limits of Fayetteville southward to 


the northern boundary of Land Lots 59 and 60 of the 5
th


 District.  This area is largely 


undeveloped at this time. 


 


Industrial 


 


This category designates all land dedicated to manufacturing facilities, processing plants, 


factories, warehousing and wholesale trade facilities, mining or mineral extraction activities, or 


other similar uses.  For more descriptive purposes, industrial land use is subdivided into “Light” 


and “Heavy” categories: 


  


Light Industrial: Includes non-heavy manufacturing and uses such as trucking 


terminals, warehousing, and other industrial uses.   


 


Heavy Industrial: Designates land uses which heavily impact adjacent land uses such as 


heavy manufacturing industries, rock quarries, and auto salvage yards. 


 


Industrial land uses are important consideration in any community, due to the unusually large 


sites they require, the tax and employment base they yield, and the safety, health, or 


environmental problems they can create.  Industrial land uses in the unincorporated county 


consist primarily of service industries that serve the local economy.  The Land Use Plan Map 


concentrates future industrial activity along SR 85 North and SR 314 where such activity already 


exists. As with commercial activity, county policy supports the location of major industrial 


activity, which requires adequate infrastructure and transportation (rail) access, within the 


existing industrial park in Peachtree City.   


 







Business Technology Park 


 


This category designates properties where the Business Technology Park (BTP) zoning district is 


appropriate.  The purpose of the BTP zoning district is to provide a business/employment center 


in a planned campus setting with internal streets serving individual lots that contain single 


business or multi-tenant buildings. (This paragraph added in its entirety)  


 


Special Development District 


 


A purpose of a Special Development District is to designate an area where specific land use 


policies and regulations will apply to achieve a specific development pattern. The Special 


Development District will be depicted as a hatched pattern over a land use designation. (This 


paragraph added in its entirety) 


 


SR 74 North East Side Special Development District:  The purpose of this Special 


Development District is to promote planned office development along the eastern frontage of SR 


74 to a depth of approximately 800 feet to fulfill the stated goals for the future development of 


the corridor as stated in the SR 74 North Overlay District. (This paragraph added in its 


entirety) 


 


Public Facilities/Institutional 


 


Public Facilities/Institutional land uses indicate all land owned by local government for the 


provision of services (courthouses and jails, government building complexes, schools,  fire 


stations, etc.) and semi-public uses such as churches and their grounds.  Representing uses that 


are considered to be more location-sensitive for proximity (e.g. fire/EMS stations, schools), these 


uses are scattered throughout the unincorporated county.  Both the existing and (known) future 


locations of public and institutional facilities in the unincorporated county are indicated on the 


Land Use Plan Map.  The location of certain facilities can change the characteristics of an area.   


Existing and future residents should be aware of such uses and their implication.  


 


Conservation Areas 


 


This category identifies environmentally sensitive areas, containing waterways, watershed 


protection areas, flood plains, poor soils and steep slopes that are not conducive to development.  


Conservation Areas are useful as passive recreational areas and wildlife habitat. The Land Use 


Plan Map shows Conservation Areas concentrated along the county’s major water supply 


streams and their tributaries.  These major water supply streams include the Flint River, 


Whitewater Creek, and Line Creek.   The Conservation Areas also generally coincide with the 


proposed greenspace areas indicated in the Fayette County Community Greenspace Program 


 


Parks and Recreation 


 


Parks and Recreation land use shows all land that is dedicated to active or passive recreational 


uses, including associated buildings and parking areas.  Open space includes parks as well as 


other undeveloped land designated or reserved for public or private use or enjoyment.  The 


unincorporated county’s existing (Kiwanis, McCurry) and future parkland is indicated on the 


Land Use Plan Map.  These are areas that offer both active and passive recreation opportunities. 


 







Transportation/Communication/Utilities 


 


This land use category indicates water system facilities, and other private and public utility land 


uses such as substations.  The location of such facilities is often beyond the control of the local 


government.  The Land Use Plan Map identifies the both the existing and future locations of 


these facilities as well as the location of railroads, gas pipelines,  and electrical transmission 


lines. 


 


Agricultural/Forestry or Undeveloped 


 


The Land Use Plan Map does not designate any areas as Agricultural/Forestry or 


Undeveloped.   It is not anticipated that any area will be strictly limited to agriculture of forestry 


uses or will be required to remain in an undeveloped state during the planning period of this plan.  


 


FUTURE DEVELOPMENT FACTORS 
 


The factors that established the county’s existing pattern of development (transportation, 


infrastructure, and the environment) will continue to influence development decisions in 


unincorporated Fayette County.  The existing transportation pattern does not support large 


scale commercial activity, such as a regional mall or major industrial distribution, warehousing, 


or fabrication uses.  Such uses require more immediate access to an interstate system.  Thus, 


Fayette County will continue to receive interest from smaller commercial and industrial uses. 


 


There will be areas of the unincorporated county that will not have water service within the 


planning period of this plan; there are no plans at this time to provide sanitary sewer service in 


the unincorporated county.  The cities of Fayetteville and Peachtree City will continue to have 


both water and sewer service.   The Town of Tyrone has water service and limited sewer service.  


Such infrastructure availability will allow these cities to accommodate higher residential 


densities than the unincorporated county and provide for more intense nonresidential uses in the 


form of large office parks, commercial centers, and industrial parks.  


 


The impacts of environmentally sensitive land will continue to affect the development of land 


through the permitted uses and intensity limitations.  Environmental constraints in the form of 


poor soils, groundwater recharge areas, and significant wetland and flood plain areas will 


influence future development patterns.     


 


Transition Areas/Incompatible Land Uses 
 


Inevitably, there are occasions when new land uses create disturbances as perceived by adjacent 


land owners and residents, especially in relatively rural areas that have been buffered in the past 


by surrounding undeveloped land.  In Fayette County, the potential for these conflicts is greatest 


just outside the incorporated areas where annexation brings new, higher density housing 


developments which encroach on rural residences.  Fayette County tries to ensure an orderly and 


appropriate pattern of land use whenever a proposed development appears to have the potential 


to create conflicts with existing adjacent land uses. 


 


 


 


 







Efficient Location of New Development 
 


Locational decisions made by developers take into account the availability of needed 


infrastructure among other considerations.  The incorporated areas of Fayetteville and Peachtree 


City have the county’s only public wastewater treatment systems, both with expansion potential. 


Development requiring this service is encouraged to locate within the service areas of these 


systems.  Without such infrastructure available, there is little opportunity for the encouragement 


of larger commercial, much less infill development in the unincorporated area.  Nonresidential 


development tends to be smaller, stand alone facilities catering to the nearby residential areas.  


For these reasons, county policies encourage larger commercial development to occur within the 


city limits where proper infrastructure and appropriate population density is available. 


 


Appropriately located retail facilities will allow the community to escape haphazard and 


blighting strip commercial development.  The concentration of such shopping facilities will 


support the continued commercial growth in a manner that underscores the objectives of this 


comprehensive plan.     


 


Transportation Corridors 
 


Over the next twenty years, a number of state routes in Fayette County are scheduled to be 


widened from a two-lane highway to four-lane divided highways.  These state routes are the 


connecting corridors for the incorporated municipalities in Fayette County and neighboring 


counties.  With few exceptions, in the unincorporated areas of the county these roads traverse 


residential and/or agricultural land uses.   


 


With the widening of these state routes comes the increased pressure for nonresidential 


development.  The County is now in the position where it must balance this demand with its own 


growth and transportation policies.  These state routes are first and foremost transportation 


corridors; the efficient flow of traffic must be maintained.  Nonresidential land uses are indicated 


on the Land Use Plan Map where their location and intensity is most appropriate for the 


surrounding area.   


 


In order to better facilitate the desired development along its transportation corridors, Fayette 


County has adopted an Overlay Districts on SR 54 West and SR 74 North and several Overlay 


Zones.  The particular requirements pertaining to these transportation corridors are discussed 


below. 


 


SR 54 West Overlay District: With the widening of SR 54 West, the Board of Commissioners 


adopted the SR 54 West Overlay District.  This District identifies the county’s goals and 


recommendations for the corridor and sets out the desired development pattern.   SR 54 connects 


the communities of Fayetteville and Peachtree City, and serves as the only major east-west 


thoroughfare through the county.  The following section defines the District.  


 


Existing Development: Existing residential development is scattered along the SR 54 West 


Corridor.  Residential tracts range in size from large agricultural tracts of as much as 200 acres 


down to minimum one (1) acre subdivisions.  Large tracts are still used for agricultural purposes 


and may or may not contain a single-family residence. These tracts vary in size from 


approximately five (5) to 200 acres. The majority of the larger tracts are located between Sandy 


Creek and Tyrone Roads.  Single-family residential development consists of smaller lots, varying 







in size from one (1) to five (5) acres, fronting on SR 54 West or within subdivisions which 


access SR 54 West.   Three single-family residential subdivisions (Newton Estates, Fayette Villa, 


and The Landings) are developed in this area. 


 


These subdivisions are zoned for one (1) acre minimum lots.  Fayette Villa and The Landings are 


located between Flat Creek Trail west to Sumner Road (north) on the north side of SR 54 West.  


Newton Estates is located west of Huiet Drive on the south side of SR 54 West.  Existing 


nonresidential development consists of two commercial areas, one at Tyrone Road and one at 


Sumner Road (south). 


 


 Future Development: SR 54 West is first and foremost a transportation corridor.  The 


efficient flow of traffic must be maintained.  High intensity nonresidential uses should be 


targeted to the major intersection with Tyrone Road and SR 54 West.  As one moves 


away from this node, the intensity of nonresidential development should decrease.   The 


goals of the SR 54 West Overlay District are: (1)  to maintain the efficient traffic flow of 


SR 54 West as the County’s only major east-west thoroughfare; (2) to maintain a non-


urban separation between Fayetteville and Peachtree City; and (3) to protect existing and 


future residential areas in the SR 54 West Corridor. 


 


If lots which front on SR 54 West are allowed to change from a residential use to a 


nonresidential use, care must be taken to protect existing or future residential property.  


This can be accomplished by requiring enhanced landscaping, buffers and berms to 


protect these residential areas. 


 


 Recommendations: The intent of the SR 54 West Overlay District is to offer existing 


tracts of five +/- acres the option to convert to office uses.  Outside of the commercial 


designation at Tyrone Road and the commercial and office-institutional designation at 


Sumner Road (south), these parcels would be considered for the Office-Institutional 


Zoning District.  Conditions should be placed on property at the time of rezoning to 


address unique situations. 


 


(The following section is added in its entirety) 


SR 74 North Overlay District: This District identifies the county’s goals and recommendations 


for SR 74 North north of Sandy Creek Road and sets out the preferred development pattern for 


this area.   SR 74 runs north/south through the western side of the County and is the main 


connection to Interstate 85.  It also connects the communities of Peachtree City and Tyrone.  The 


SR 74 North Overlay District lies in the jurisdictions of both unincorporated Fayette County and 


Tyrone.  The SR 74 North Overlay District is also adjacent to Fairburn in Fulton County where 


substantial development in the form of commercial, industrial, and higher density residential is 


taking place.   


 


Existing Development 
 


Unincorporated Fayette County: Individual parcels fronting SR 74 North range in size from 


small one acre parcels to large parcels of approximately 80 acres. Smaller residential parcels 


range in size from one acre to ten acres and the majority are clustered in the area of Sandy Creek 


Road and Thompson Road.  The large parcels vary in size from approximately 13 to 80 acres. 


The majority of these large parcels are located north of Kirkley Road.  These parcels may or may 







not contain a single-family residence.    Currently, all parcels in the unincorporated area are 


zoned for residential uses. 


 


Tyrone: Parcels in Tyrone fronting on SR 74 are zoned for residential, office, commercial and 


light industrial per the Tyrone Official Zoning Map.  There are two residentially zoned parcels 


fronting SR 74 North, one contains a single-family residence, the other contains a church.  Two 


residential subdivisions are located in this area, River Oaks and Rivercrest.  River Oaks contains 


two acre lots and Rivercrest contains one-half acre lots.  One parcel zoned for office uses 


contains a small multi-tenant building and is located on the western side of SR 74 North just 


north of Kirkley Road.  Other parcels zoned for office uses are vacant at this time.  The 


commercially zoned parcel contains a golf recreation facility on the east side of SR 74 North.  


One of the parcels zoned for light industrial contains a single-family residence and the other is 


vacant at this time. 


 


Fairburn: Plans for SR 74 North in Fairburn indicate commercial on both sides of the road from 


the County line to Interstate 85 as depicted on Fairburn’s Community Character Areas map.  The 


area outside of this commercial area is indicated as residential.  The area beside Interstate 85 


along Oakley Industrial Boulevard is indicated as industrial.     


 


Future Development:  As SR 74 North lies in the jurisdictions of both unincorporated Fayette 


County and Tyrone, it is essential that both jurisdictions work together to develop a plan for the 


corridor.  SR 74 North is first and foremost a transportation corridor providing critical access to 


Hartsfield-Jackson Airport and the City of Atlanta via Interstate 85.   The maintenance of an 


efficient flow of traffic is essential.  While the design, construction and maintenance of SR 74 is 


the responsibility of Georgia Department of Transportation, local governments have the 


responsibility of the control of land development through land use planning and zoning.  Land 


use decisions on the local level will have an impact on the operational efficiency of roadway.  


For example, numerous curb cuts reduce the roadway capacity and safety due to the number of 


vehicles entering and exiting the road in multiple locations.   For the purpose of maintaining a 


higher level of operational efficiency and safety it is recommended that a system of new roads 


and service drives be pursued to provide interconnectivity and reduce the number of individual 


curb cuts. 


 


The goals of the SR 74 North Overlay District are: (1) to maintain the efficient traffic flow of SR 


74 North as the County’s main connection to Interstate 85; (2) to enhance and maintain the 


aesthetic qualities of the corridor, as it is the gateway into Fayette County; (3) to provide for 


economic expansion and jobs commensurate with the educational and skill level of Fayette’s 


labor force; and (4) to protect existing and future residential areas in the SR 74 North corridor. 


 


Recommendations: 


 


SR 74 North West Side:  The area from Kirkley Road north to the County line on the west side 


of SR 74 North is designated as Business Technology Park.  This land use designation will 


correspond to the Business Technology Park Zoning District and the SR 74 North Overlay Zone 


in the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance.  The Business Technology Park Zoning District 


consists of office and high tech light industrial uses with a limited amount of commercial support 


services.     


 







Presently, there are three large parcels that make up the majority of the area.  Two of these 


parcels are in unincorporated Fayette County (72 acres and 28 acres) and the other parcel is in 


Tyrone (37 acres).  The 72 acre parcel is the northern most parcel and a portion of it is in Fulton 


County, City of Fairburn.  The 28 acre parcel is the southern most parcel and has frontage on 


both SR 74 and Kirkley Road.  Both of these parcels are zoned Agricultural-Residential.  The 37 


acre parcel in Tyrone separates these two parcels.  The front 400 feet of this parcel is zoned 


Office-Institutional and the remainder is zoned M-1 (Light-Industrial).    


 


Besides these parcels there are five smaller parcels that make up the remainder of this area. In 


Tyrone these parcels include two five acre Agricultural-Residential parcels that contain a church 


located beside the aforementioned 37 acre parcel, a four acre parcel zoned M-1 that contains a 


single-family residence and a two acre Office-Institutional parcel that contains a multi-tenant 


building.  Also included in this area is a two acre R-40 parcel on Kirkley Road in the 


unincorporated County that must be assembled with the aforementioned 28 acre parcel for 


purposes of rezoning to Business Technology Park.      


 


The greatest development potential is in the three large parcels.  Because these parcels are 


contiguous to each other, they create the potential for a continuous development pattern, as they 


can all be linked.  To promote this continuous development pattern and connection, a connecting 


road from SR 74 North through these properties to Kirkley Road will be required.  The purpose 


of this road is to allow internal circulation through these properties.  The road would be aligned 


with Thompson Road where a median break exists on SR 74 North; this will serve as the curb cut 


for the 72-acre parcel, and will run south through the three properties to Kirkley Road.  Another 


median break is located where Kirkley Road intersects SR 74 North.  The other large parcel in 


the unincorporated county will be allowed one curb cut for the construction of a street that will 


be right in/right out only, as no median break on SR 74 North is located in this area.  Curb cuts 


for individual properties created in the development of these parcels would not be allowed on SR 


74 or Kirkley Road.  In addition, a multi-use path system will be required to allow for pedestrian, 


bicycle, and golf cart connectivity between these aforementioned properties. 


 


SR 74 North - East Side Special Development District:  The area along the east side of SR 74 


North is designated as a Special Development District.  The purpose of this Special Development 


District is to promote planned office development along the frontage of SR 74 to a depth of 


approximately 800 feet to fulfill the aforementioned goals for the future development of the 


corridor. As an incentive the Office-Institutional Zoning classification will allow a limited 


amount of commercial uses in conjunction with office uses when the minimum requirements for 


acreage (ten acres) and road frontage (600 feet) are met.  This minimum requirement for acreage 


and frontage will achieve a reduction in individual curb cuts on SR 74, consistency and 


coordination in architectural design, and capacity to develop a required service drive where 


applicable.  The assemblage of parcels in some areas will be necessary to meet the minimum 


requirements of the SR 74 North – East Side Special Development District in the Office-


Institutional Zoning classification.   


 


The property located beyond 800 feet from SR 74 will remain designated for Low Density 


Residential (1 unit/1 to 2 acres).  This would include the area along Thompson Road where 


residential lots exist ranging in size from two to nine acres and undeveloped large parcels where 


it is anticipated that residential subdivisions could be developed in the future.  It is anticipated 


that the entrance to some of these residential areas, both exiting and future, will be through the 


planned office development along the frontage of SR 74. It is recommended that curb cuts on 







these roads be minimized, landscaping be enhanced, and a multi-use path connection between 


theses residential areas and the planned office developments be established.  This will be 


addressed through conditions placed on the property at the time of rezoning or as a condition of 


site plan approval.       


 


Area 1: North of Thompson Road extending approximately 700 feet north to the Fulton County 


line.  This area contains seven parcels totaling approximately 19 acres in the Special 


Development District.  Five of the seven parcels have frontage on SR 74 and the other two 


parcels front on Thompson Road.  Of the five parcels fronting SR 74, three contain single-family 


residences and two are vacant.  The two parcels fronting Thompson Road each contain a single-


family residence.  The existing boundaries of most of these parcels are in the range of 800 feet 


from SR 74.  However, one of these parcels is ten acres in size and is approximately 1,400 feet in 


depth, well beyond the 800-foot depth of the Special Development District.   


   


This is an area where the assemblage of parcels will achieve the goals of the SR 74 North 


Overlay District.  Assemblage would meet the threshold of a minimum of ten acres and 600 feet 


of road frontage on SR 74 set forth in the SR 74 Special Development District in the zoning 


ordinance.  The continuation of the service drive in Fairburn will be required as applicable for 


parcels in Area 1 that are zoned for non-residential uses.  The number of curb cuts will be 


addressed through conditions put in place at the time of rezoning or as a condition of site plan 


approval.  Individual curb cuts for nonresidential uses should not be allowed on Thompson Road.   


 


In the interim pending assemblage of this area, those parcels within the Special Development 


District, Area 1 with frontage on SR 74 can be given individual consideration for O-I zoning.  


This would include the aforementioned ten acre parcel.  If the entire ten acres were rezoned to O-


I it is recommended that the front 800 foot portion of the property be targeted for the O-I 


development and rear portion of the property be limited to parking and/or stormwater facilities.  


This could be accomplished through conditions placed on the property at the time of rezoning.   


  


Parcels that do not have frontage on SR 74 that are within the Special Development District, 


Area 1 should not be given individual consideration for  O-I zoning as they only have frontage 


on Thompson Road.  Consideration for O-I zoning should not be given to these parcels until they 


are assembled with adjacent properties to meet the requirements of the SR 74 North - East Side 


Special Development District in the O-I Zoning classification.  


 


Area 2: South of Thompson Road extending south approximately 800 feet.  This area contains 


four parcels totaling approximately 10.4 acres in the Special Development District.  Two of the 


four parcels have frontage on SR 74 and the other two parcels front on Thompson Road.  Of the 


two parcels fronting SR 74, one contains a single-family residence and the other is vacant.  The 


two parcels fronting Thompson Road each contain a single-family residence.  The existing 


boundaries of these parcels are in the range of 800 feet from SR 74. 


 


This is an area where the assemblage of parcels will achieve the goals of the SR 74 North 


Overlay District.  Assemblage would meet the threshold of a minimum of ten acres and 600 feet 


of road frontage on SR 74 set forth in the SR 74 Special Development District in the zoning 


ordinance.  The continuation of the service drive in Fairburn will be required as applicable for 


parcels in Area 2 that are zoned for non-residential uses  The number of curb cuts will be 


addressed through conditions placed on the property at the time of rezoning or as a condition of 







site plan approval.  Individual curb cuts for nonresidential uses should not be allowed on 


Thompson Road.   


 


In the interim pending assemblage of this area, those parcels within the Special Development 


District, Area 2 with frontage on SR 74 can be given individual consideration for O-I zoning.  


Parcels that do not have frontage on SR 74 that are within the Special Development District, 


Area 2 should not be given individual consideration for  O-I zoning as they only have frontage 


on Thompson Road.  Consideration for O-I zoning should not be given to these parcels until they 


are assembled with adjacent properties to meet the requirements of the SR 74 North - East Side 


Special Development District in the O-I Zoning classification.  


 


Area 3: This area starts approximately 800 feet south of Thompson Road and extends 


approximately 1,300 feet to the south from this point.  This area contains approximately 24 acres 


in the Special Development District.  These 24 acres are part of an 81 acre parcel which contains 


a single-family residence.  The single-family residence is not within the 24 acres contained in the 


Special Development District. 


 


This is an area where the assemblage of parcels is not necessary to achieve the goals of the SR 


74 North Overlay District.  The continuation of the service drive in Fairburn will be required if 


this property is zoned for non-residential uses. The number of curb cuts will be addressed 


through conditions placed on the property at the time of rezoning or as a condition of site plan 


approval.    


 


Area 4: North of Sandy Creek Road extending north approximately 1,400 feet.  This area 


contains four parcels totaling approximately 24 acres in the Special Development District.  All 


four parcels have frontage on SR 74 and one parcel also has frontage on Sandy Creek Road.  Of 


the four parcels, three parcels each contain a single-family residence and one is vacant.  The 


existing boundaries of these parcels are in the range of 700 feet from SR 74. 


 


This is an area where the assemblage of parcels is necessary to achieve the goals of the SR 74 


North Overlay District.  Assemblage would meet the threshold of a minimum of ten acres and 


600 feet of road frontage on SR 74 set forth in the SR 74 Special Development District in the 


zoning ordinance.  The continuation of the service drive in Fairburn would not be required.  The 


number of curb cuts will be addressed through conditions placed on the property at the time of 


rezoning or as a condition of site plan approval.   


 


In the interim pending assemblage of this area, the four parcels can be given individual 


consideration for O-I zoning.  


 


Other Transportation Corridors: Section 7-6 Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone of the 


Fayette County Zoning Ordinance establishes Overlay Zones on state highways that traverse 


Fayette County.  Regardless of the underlining zoning, any new nonresidential development 


along these corridors must meet the requirements of the particular Overlay Zone.   The Zoning 


Ordinance establishes Overlay Zones on SR 54 West and SR 74 North, SR 85 North, and a 


General State Route Overlay Zone on all other state routes. 


 


GOALS, OBJECTIVES, POLICIES, GUIDELINES 
 







The objectives and policies presented in this section provide guidance for an appropriate pattern 


and pace of development and they indicate how this development should relate to the existing 


and future community. They also provide a logical framework for land-use decision-making at a 


conceptual level as well as on an area-wide basis. Uniform application of these objectives and 


policies should result in a balanced and harmonious community where a high quality of life can 


be maintained. Since policy areas, whether housing, employment or the environment, achieve 


physical realization through the land use plan, the development and implementation of sound and 


consistent land use principles are critical to the realization of county goals. 


 


The following goal, objective, and policy statements provide the basis for dealing with the 


growth and development which will impact the county over the next 20 years.  Following each 


goal is a listing of objectives and policies which address specific issues.  Recommendations, or 


guidelines, which suggest courses of action for addressing these issues, are also provided. 


 


Goal for Land Use: Growth and development should be consistent with the county’s land use 


plan, which provides for the orderly, balanced, and quality development of all land uses 


consistent with the physical and economic limitations of the county.  Growth should take place in 


accordance with criteria and standards designed to preserve, enhance, and protect an orderly mix 


of residential, commercial and/or industrial facilities, and open space without compromising 


existing residential development. 


 


LAND USE PATTERN 
 


Through most of its recent history, the unincorporated county could be characterized primarily as 


a residential area.  Major nonresidential land uses generally occur within incorporated areas, 


where infrastructure and higher population densities are located. 


 


It is a policy of the Fayette County Board of Commissioners that the county's residential 


neighborhoods are the cornerstone of the community. As such, every effort must be made to 


ensure that these neighborhoods are protected from the negative aspects of growth and 


development. 


 


As the county has matured, residential development continues to be the dominant land use.  The 


pattern of land use in Fayette County provides a variety of housing choices.  The type and 


density of residential development complements its location within Fayette County.  The 


unincorporated portions of the county, as well as the towns of Brooks and Woolsey, are 


characterized by agricultural uses and/or low density single-family subdivision residential 


development with lot sizes ranging from a minimum of one acre up to a minimum of five acres.  


Higher density residential development can be found in the cities of Fayetteville, Peachtree City; 


and Tyrone where residents can choose from a variety of housing styles such as apartments, 


townhouses, row houses, duplexes, and single family homes on smaller lots. 


 


Objective L-1: The County's land use plan should project a clear vision of an 


attractive, prosperous, harmonious, and efficient community. 


 


    Policy a. Direct growth and development to occur in locations and in a manner 


which enhances community identity and can be supported by the 


availability of public facilities.  


 







 Policy b. Maintain the individual character and identity of established communities, 


neighborhoods, and rural areas. 


 


Policy c. Identify the location of nodes to accommodate nonresidential development 


and prevent the sprawl of strip development. 


 


Policy d. Allocate a supply of land sufficient to meet the projected land use 


demands. 


 


   Objective L-2: The County’s land use pattern protects, enhances and/or maintains 


stability in established residential neighborhoods. 


 


    Policy a. Protect and enhance existing neighborhoods by ensuring that infill 


development is of compatible use, density/intensity, and that adverse 


impacts on public facility and transportation systems, the environment, 


and the surrounding area will not occur.  Note: Infill development is the 


development of new housing or other buildings on scattered vacant sites in 


a built-up area. 


 


    Policy b. Prevent the encroachment of incompatible land uses, both residential and 


nonresidential, into established or designated land use areas.  Prohibit 


access to nonresidential uses via residential areas. 


 


The intensity of land use has a direct effect on the ability to provide adequate levels of service 


for transportation and public facilities. The Comprehensive Plan is the primary mechanism 


available to the county for establishing appropriate locations for various levels of land use 


intensity. Through this mechanism, development occurs in accord with the Plan, at intensities 


that can assist in achieving various county goals. For instance, higher intensity uses will be 


located in areas of the county where public facilities can best accommodate the demands from 


such uses, thereby efficiently using county resources.  


 


Objective L-3: The location and level of development intensity should be utilized as a 


means to best accommodate the demands on county resources. 


 


    Policy a. The highest level of development intensity should be concentrated in the 


incorporated areas of Fayette County that offer a full range of 


infrastructure and a concentration of population densities. 


 


 Policy b. Development in the unincorporated areas should be of less intensity than 


those in the incorporated areas and blend in with the character of the 


surrounding area. 


    


Policy c. Limit development intensity to that which can be accommodated at 


acceptable levels of service with consideration of the cumulative, 


long-term impacts of development on the adequacy of public facilities and 


transportation systems. 


 


        Policy d. Locate and limit development intensity in a manner which will not 


adversely impact sensitive environmental areas. 







 


Policy e. Ensure that the intensity and type of development will be compatible with 


the physical limitations of the land; such as soils, slope, topography, etc. 


 


Policy f. Discourage development which would conflict with environmentally 


sensitive and historic areas of the county. 


 


In the past twenty years, Fayette County has experienced rapid growth and development.   


Planned development intensities must be appropriate for the level of available public services. 


 


Objective L-4: The pace of development in the County should be in general accord 


with the Comprehensive Plan and sustainable by the provision of 


transportation and public facilities. 
 


    Policy a. Influence the timing of development to coincide with the provision of 


public facilities. 


  


    Policy b. Commit, through the Capital Improvement Program, funding for facilities 


in general accord with the Comprehensive Plan. 


 


 Policy c. Coordinate the zoning of land for nonresidential usage with residential 


growth patterns, trends, and densities. 


 


Recommendations for land use are depicted on the map entitled "Fayette County Land Use 


Plan." This guidance assists in determining a property's appropriate use and intensity.   


Implementation of the Plan will occur through the zoning process which requires an analysis of 


basic development-related issues which include, but are not limited to, the requested use and 


intensity of that use, affect on surrounding development, access and circulation, buffering and 


screening of adjacent uses, parcel consolidation, and protection of the environment.  


 


Objective L-5: The County seeks to achieve a harmonious and attractive 


development pattern which minimizes undesirable visual, auditory, 


environmental, and other impacts created by potentially incompatible 


uses.  
 


       Policy a. Promote the adaptive reuse of existing structures in established areas that 


are compatible with existing and/or planned land use and that is at a 


compatible scale with the surrounding area.  


 


    Policy b. Achieve compatible transitions between adjoining land uses through a step 


down of land use density and/or intensity and the use of appropriate 


landscaping, buffering, berms, setbacks, a smooth transition in building 


height, and consistent architectural design. 


  


       Policy c. Stabilize residential neighborhoods adjacent to nonresidential areas 


through the establishment of transitional land uses, vegetated buffers 


and/or architectural screens, and the control of vehicular access.  


 







Policy d. Require additional site design standards when necessary to minimize the 


affect of nonresidential uses both visually and environmentally. 


 


    Policy e. Utilize landscaping and open space along rights-of-way to minimize the 


impacts of incompatible land uses separated by roadways.  


 


    Policy f. Minimize the potential adverse impacts of the development of frontage 


parcels on major arterials through the control of land use, circulation and 


access.  


 


    Policy g. Use cluster development as a means to preserve open space in conjunction 


with the Georgia Greenspace Program. 


  


    Policy h. Promote nonresidential development which does not produce excessive 


noise; smoke, dust, or other particulate matter; vibration; toxic or noxious 


waste materials; odors; fire; and explosive hazards or other detrimental 


impacts to minimize impacts on any nearby residential property. 


 


Policy i. Anticipate the effects of road widening by increasing setbacks 


accordingly. 


 


Section 2. By amending the Land Use Plan Map along the SR 74 North Corridor on the west 


side in two (2) areas from Low Density Residential (1 unit/1 to 2 acres) to 


Business Technology Park and on the east side in two (2) areas from Low Density 


Residential (1 unit/1 to 2 acres) to Special Development District – Office as 


follows: 


 







 SO ENACTED this 27
th


 day of August, 2009,  by the 


 


       BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  


       FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


 


 


       ________________________________ 


               Jack Smith, Chairman 


 


 


_____________________________ 


Clerk/Deputy Clerk 


 





		Agenda Request

		Three Changes

		Minutes

		07-01-2009 BOC Minutes

		08-06-2009 Planning Commission Public Hearing Minutes



		Correspondence

		04-15-2009 Georgia Department of Community Affairs

		04-21-2009 Atlanta Regional Commission



		Ordinances Requested for Adoption

		Ordinance 2009-02

		Ordinance 2009-03












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Public Safety M. Allen McCullough


Approval of staff's request to increase Public Safety and Emergency Management's Fiscal Year 2009 Donations/Miscellaneous Revenue 
Account by $2,281 and to increase the Food/Catered Meals Expense Account by $2,281 to account for donations from various 
companies, a benevolence society, and citizens.


Beginning in November, 2008 and lasting until February, 2009, the Department of Public Safety and Emergency Management has 
received $2,281 from various companies, a benevolence society, and citizens.  The donations were intended and used for the purchase 
of Thanksgiving Dinner for public safety staff and families. 
 
On November 15, 2008 Waddell's Catering catered Thanksgiving Dinner at New Hope Church's north campus. 
 
The request is for a budget adjustment to the Fiscal Year 2009 Budget accounting for revenues received by the Department of Public 
Safety and Emergency Management and to account for expenditures associated with the purchase of Thanksgiving Dinner.


Approval of staff's request to increase Public Safety and Emergency Management's Fiscal Year 2009 Donations/Miscellaneous Revenue 
Account (27030003-371001) by $2,281 and to increase the Food/Catered Meals Expense Account (10030930-531300) by $2,281 to 
account for donations


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, August 27, 2009








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Fayette County Water System Tony Parrott


Approval of Water Committee's recommendation for approval of a Memorandum of Understanding between Fayette County and 


Peachtree City for the purpose of allowing Peachtree City's Dive Team to train at Lake Horton and Lake Kedron.


The Peachtree City Dive Team has requested the use of Lake Horton for the purpose of annual training of its Dive Team members.  


Training exercises will be scheduled Monday through Thursday only and only during the open park hours.  Scheduling of the training will 


be coordinated between the Peachtree City Dive Team, Fayette County Fire and Emergency Services, Marshal's Office and the Water 


System.  The agreement will also be for training on Lake Kedron as well. 


 


The Board of Commissioners was briefed on this request at its August 5, 2009 Workshop.  This item was tabled during the August 13, 


2009 Board of Commissioners Meeting.


Approval of the Memorandum of Understanding.


Not Applicable.


Yes Thursday, August 27, 2009


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, August 27, 2009

















		Agenda Request 

		Memorandum of Understanding between Fayette County and Peachtree City






MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


August 5, 2009


 3:30 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on Wednesday, August 5, 2009, at 3:30


p.m. in the Commissioners’ Conference Room, Suite 100 of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall


Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Jack Smith, Chairman


Herb Frady, Vice Chairman


Lee Hearn


Robert Horgan


Eric Maxwell


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, County Administrator


Scott Bennett, County Attorney


Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk
______________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order by Chairman.


Chairman Smith called the August 5, 2009 Board of Commissioners Workshop Meeting to order at 3:32 p.m.


Acceptance of Agenda.


Commissioner Horgan moved to accept the agenda as published.  Commissioner Maxwell seconded the motion.  The


motion passed unanimously.


OLD BUSINESS:


A. Update and continued discussion of creating a stormwater utility by the staff of the Stormwater
Management Department.


Developmental Engineer Bryan Keller reminded the Board that, during the February 12, 2009 Commission


Meeting, the Stormwater Management Department was directed to engage the County’s various municipalities


to determine if they were willing to begin a Feasibility Study for Fayette County regarding the creation of a


consolidated Stormwater Utility, and he reported that the Town of Tyrone, the Town of Brooks, and the Town


of Woolsey agreed to participate in the study.  Discussion followed regarding how to start and fund the


Feasibility Study and what should be entailed in the study.







Workshop Minutes
August 5, 2009
Page Number 2


County Administrator Jack Krakeel clarified that during the August 13, 2009 Commission Meeting, staff would


be seeking the Board’s authorization to develop and issue a Request for Proposals, or RFPs, for the


development of a Feasibility Study, and after the RFP process has been completed staff, would return to the


Board making a recommendation on which firm could provide the best service, at which time the cost of the


study, the source of the funding for the study, and the timeframe for completing the study will be decided.  He


emphasized that there would be no allocation of funds or vote taken at today’s meeting.


Commissioner Hearn mentioned that the County needed to carefully determine what was expected to be


accomplished with the Feasibility Study and needed to carefully identify what action items the County wanted


to “take on”.  He suggested staff look at criteria used by other jurisdictions during their RFP processes, and he


said he wanted to see an RFP based on qualifications, determined by what firms have completed similar


Feasibility Studies or have worked with similar sized counties and how well they performed their work.  He


further encouraged staff to send draft copies of the RFP to several of the counties’ departments for peer review


in order to determine if there were aspects that have been omitted or need improvement before they are


officially issued.


The Board took no action during this discussion.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 1", follows


these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


NEW BUSINESS:


B. Discussion of a request that Peachtree City’s Dive Team be allowed to train at Lake Horton and Lake
Kedron.


Utilities System Director Tony Parrott and Assistant Chief of Training and Special Operations for the Peachtree


City Fire Department, Joe O’Connor, explained and discussed Peachtree City’s Dive Team’s request to train


at Lake Horton and Lake Kedron, including some of the restrictions imposed on the Team in order to train at


the lakes.   Asst. Chief O’Connor stated that after a recent meeting with the Water Committee, Peachtree City


proposed a couple of changes to the proposed Memorandum of Understanding, and he stated there were some


restrictions imposed on Lake Kedron that he was unsure were needed to be applied to that lake.


Commissioner Hearn and Chairman Smith stressed that the Dive Team’s jet ski should be used judiciously and


conditional with the training exercises only. Asst. Chief O’Connor replied that would be the only way the jet ski


would be used.   Chairman Smith asked for language to be included in the Memorandum of Understanding


specifying the conditional use of jet skis on the County’s reservoirs.


Asst. Chief O’Connor noted that Lake Horton is near Spalding County and that Spalding County is one of the


very few neighbors Fayette County has whose Sheriff’s Department maintains an underwater recovery team.


He asked for the option to invite Spalding County’s Diving Team to participate in the training.  County


Administrator Jack Krakeel mentioned a point of clarification needed to be made with respect to including other


dive teams being a part of the training exercise.  He stated that while he was not opposed to other individual


dive team members training with the Peachtree City Dive Team, the County needed to be cautious that it does


not have two or more entire teams training in the lakes. 


The Board directed that the amended Memorandum of Understanding be placed on the August 13, 2009


Consent Agenda.  A copy of this request, identified as “Attachment 2", follows these minutes and is made an


official part hereof.







Workshop Minutes
August 5, 2009
Page Number 3


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT


There was no Administrator’s Report.


ATTORNEY’S REPORT


There was no Attorney’s Report.


STAFF REPORTS


Notice of Hearing to Set 2009 Millage Rates:  Finance Director Mary Holland provided the Board with an update


regarding the proposed 2009 Millage Rates, gave the Board a copy of the newspaper advertisement required to be


published in the County’s legal organ prior to the Public Hearing held at the August 27, 2009 Board of Commissioners


meeting, and discussed the proposed millage rates with the Board.  She added that staff is recommending millage rates


consistent with last year’s millage rates which would continue to generate enough funds to meet the obligations detailed


in the Fiscal Year 2010 budget.


Commissioner Frady moved to approve the publication of the 2009 Millage Rates in the County’s legal organ.


Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.


BOARD REPORTS


Snead Road and Redwine Road:  Commissioner Maxwell stated he had driven on Snead Road yesterday and it looked


like there was good progress taking place on the road.  He said no work was occurring on the road, he assumed because


of the wet weather conditions in the past several days. 


Commissioner Maxwell continued that he had recently driven on Redwine Road and noticed new asphalt and a


temporary center-line on a portion of the road.  He expressed concern with construction work occurring on the road on


the first day of school, August 10, stating the new influx of traffic in an already congested area could be problematic.


He asked for the Board to consider limiting the construction work on Redwine Road on August 10 in order to cause as


little disruption to traffic as possible.


County Administrator Jack Krakeel interjected he had a similar conversation last week with the Public Works Department


and while he thought everyone was under the initial impression that the entirety of Redwine Road would be repaved,


he understands that the construction work would begin at SR 74 and terminate at Harris Road.  He explained that the


remainder of Redwine Road was tested, was found to be in good condition, and was not a candidate for full-depth


reclamation or over-topping at this time.  He concluded that after the work was completed the work crew would move


from Redwine Road to Banks Road and then eventually to Gingercake Road.


Commissioner Maxwell reiterated, if the work was not completed on Redwine Road prior to August 10, he wanted a


contingency plan for the 8:00 a.m. and the 3:00 p.m. hours so that construction work is not occurring during school hours


since the road is already a construction area which is already clogged with traffic, and since traffic will certainly increase


with the influx of school traffic.  Chairman Smith noted similar problems could occur on Banks Road and that work is


currently taking place on that road as well.


Mr. Krakeel replied he would talk to staff and Mr. David Jaeger about the Board’s concern in an effort to coordinate the


construction work with peak school hours in order to minimize disruptions.







Workshop Minutes
August 5, 2009
Page Number 4


EXECUTIVE SESSION


There was no Executive Session.


ADJOURNMENT


Chairman Smith adjourned the August 5, 2009 Board of Commissioners Workshop Meeting at 4:48 p.m.


________________________________ _____________________________________


     Floyd L. Jones,  Deputy Clerk                                     Jack R. Smith, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,


Georgia, held on the 27rd day of August, 2009.


___________________________________


     Floyd L. Jones, Deputy Clerk








Minutes
Board of Commissioners


August 13, 2009
7:00 P.M.


 
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on Thursday, August 13, 2009, at 7:00
 p.m. in the public meeting room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville,
Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Jack Smith, Chairman
Herb Frady, Vice Chairman
Lee Hearn
Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk
______________________________________________________________________________________


Chairman Smith called the meeting to order.
Commissioner Hearn offered the Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance.


ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA:
Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve the agenda as presented.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.
Chairman Smith requested consent agenda item #6 be removed from the consent agenda because the
intergovernmental agreement for this item had not been completed.  Commissioner Horgan amended the motion to
approve the agenda as presented with the exception of consent agenda item #6.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the
amended motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


PRESENTATION/RECOGNITION:
A. RECOGNITION OF ROSS KING OF THE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF GEORGIA:


The Board recognized Ross King of the Association of County Commissioners of Georgia as being selected as the next
Executive Director for A.C.C.G.  The Board also presented Mr. King with a framed Resolution in his honor.  A copy of
the Resolution recognizing Mr. King, identified as “Attachment No. 1", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.  A local business leader and friend Dan Davis also spoke in recognition of Mr. King.  He said Fayette County
should be proud of Ross and he pointed out that he was an advocate for this State, land conservation, and the
environment.  Mr. King thanked the Board for recognizing him with the Resolution and said he would accept it with honor.
He said he would embrace this experience and never forget his roots.  He said he would also like to thank his wife who
had built his foundation and someone that he loved dearly.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


August 13, 2009 


Page 2


PUBLIC HEARING:
B. CONSIDERATION OF A PACKAGED BEER AND WINE LICENSE FOR DUAA EXPRESS, INC. D/B/A SHELL


FOOD MART, 1183 SR 54 EAST, FAYETTEVILLE, GEORGIA, MUNIRA SAMNANI, OWNER/APPLICANT.
THIS PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN LAND LOT 137 OF THE 5  DISTRICT, FRONTS ON SR 54 EAST ANDTH


MCDONOUGH ROAD, AND IS ZONED C-H:


Chairman Smith asked if the petitioner or representative was present to speak and there was none.  He asked if anyone
in the audience wished to speak in favor of this application.  Hearing none, he asked if anyone wished to speak in
opposition to this application and there was none.  He asked for the Board’s pleasure in this matter.


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve the packaged beer and wine license for Duaa Express, Inc. d/b/a Shell
Food Mart, 1183 SR 54 East, Fayetteville, Georgia, Munira Samnani, Owner/Applicant for property located in land lot
137 of the 5  District and fronting on SR 54 East and McDonough Road and zoned C-H.  Commissioner Frady secondedth


the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 2", follows these minutes and
is made an official part hereof.


PUBLIC COMMENT:
DENNIS CHASE:  Dennis Chase said he was representing the Line Creek Association of Fayette County.  He remarked
that he was gathering information from State and Federal agencies for his lawsuit against the County regarding the West
Fayetteville Bypass.  He said he and a group of approximately 100 citizens would be taking upon themselves to vote
against the S.P.L.O.S.T. and would campaign to address as many citizens as possible to support their anti S.P.L.O.S.T.
movement. 


BOB ROSS:   Bob Ross commented on Commissioner Horgan’s conduct on May 23, 2009 and his scope of duties as
a Commissioner. He presented the Board with a copy of his comments, identified as “Attachment No. 3", follow these
minutes and are made an official part hereof.  He remarked that personal actions did matter to the citizens of this County
and they expect Commissioners to lead by example, uphold values, have a sense of right and wrong and to build and
maintain trust in government. He asked Commissioner Horgan to step down as a member of the Board of
Commissioners.  


JOSEPH KREHEL:  Joseph Krehel remarked that some of his friends also wanted to attend tonight’s meeting but had
already left for college.  He commented on Commissioner Horgan’s necessity to accept accountability for his actions.
He said integrity and morality must be upheld not only in someone’s personal life but in their business life.  He said he
would be leaving for college soon and the war against drugs was an ever present conflict in his life.  He said it was not
only acceptable but was a norm.  He said if government leaders do not uphold the fight against such corrupting
temptations, then why should anyone else.  


TOM WALLER:  Tom Waller commented on Commissioner Horgan remaining as a member of the Board of
Commissioners.  He said he had no college degrees of any kind and no academic background.  He also noted that
Commissioner Horgan had no military service to his Country.  He said Commissioner Horgan was hiding in open site
and the citizens did not need this man as a Commissioner.    


CONSENT AGENDA: Commissioner Frady made a motion to approve the consent agenda as presented with the
exception of item #6 that was removed.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  Commissioner Maxwell requested
that the minutes for the Special Called Meeting held on July 29  be removed for a separate vote since Chairman Smithth


and Commissioner Horgan were not present at that meeting.  Commissioner Frady amended his motion to also include
removal of these minutes.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the amended motion. The motion carried 5-0.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


August 13, 2009 


Page 3


911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER - QUALITY RECORDING SOLUTIONS, LLC CONTRACT:
Approval of staff’s request to acquire new recording equipment for the 911 Communications Center from Quality
Recording Solutions, LLC, at cost of $59,820 and to authorize the Chairman to execute the purchase agreement.  A copy
of the request and the contract, identified as “Attachment No. 4", follow these minutes and are made an official part
hereof.  


SHERIFF’S OFFICE - ANNUAL FEDERAL EQUITABLE SHARING AGREEMENT AND CERTIFICATION:
Approval of a request from the Sheriff that the Chairman be authorized to execute the annual Federal Equitable Sharing
Agreement and Certification between Fayette County and the U. S. Departments of Justice and Treasury for the period
of July 1, 2008 through June 30, 2009. A copy of the request and the Agreement, identified as “Attachment No. 5", follow
these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


SHERIFF’S OFFICE - OVERTIME BUDGET ACCOUNT AMENDED:
Approval of the Sheriff’s Office request to amend the Overtime Budget Account for the Criminal Investigations Division
by $1,258.70 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal Agencies. A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment No. 6", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


INFORMATION SYSTEMS - RFP #P711 AWARDED TO DELTACOM, INC.:
Approval of staff’s recommendation to award RFP #P711 to Deltacom, Inc. for the replacement of and service agreement
for two PRI (Primary Rate Interlace) Telecommunications Circuits located at the Jail and Justice Center.  A copy of the
request, identified as “Attachment No. 7", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


FAMILY AND CHILDREN SERVICES BOARD - KAREN SPANGLER APPOINTED:
Approval of reappointment of Karen Spangler to the Fayette County Family and Children Services Board for a term
commencing July 1, 2009 and ending June 30, 2014. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 8", follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


ITEM #6 WAS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA:
6.      Approval of Water Committee’s recommendation for approval of a Memorandum of Understanding between Fayette
County and Peachtree City for the purpose of allowing Peachtree City’s Dive Team to train at Lake Horton and Lake
Kedron.


Chairman Smith remarked that the Memorandum of Understanding was not finalized at this time and would be removed
from the agenda.  


STORMWATER UTILITY FEASIBILITY STUDY - REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS TO BE ISSUED:
Approval of staff’s recommendation that a request for proposals be issued for the performance of a Stornwater Utility
Feasibility Study.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 9", follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.  


MINUTES:
Approval of minutes for Board of Commissioners’ meetings held on July 23, 2009 and Special Called Meeting held on
July 29, 2009.


Chairman Smith remarked that since he and Commissioner Horgan were absent from the Special Called Meeting held
on July 29, 2009, these minutes would be voted on separately and they both would abstain from the vote.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


August 13, 2009 


Page 4


Commissioner Frady made a motion to approve the minutes for the Special Called Meeting held on July 29, 2009.
Commissioner Maxwell seconded the motion.  The motion carried 3-0-2 with Chairman Smith and Commissioner Horgan
abstaining from the vote.  


OLD BUSINESS:
C.           RESOLUTION NO. 2009-11 - CONSIDERATION OF INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENTS WITH THE


COUNTY’S  MUNICIPALITIES FOR THE DISTRIBUTION OF SPECIAL PURPOSE LOCAL OPTION SALES
TAX PROCEEDS, IF APPROVED BY REFERENDUM ON NOVEMBER 3, 2009:


County Attorney Scott Bennett discussed the distribution of the special purpose local option sales tax proceeds with the
Board.  He said the County actually had two different levels of projects that it could allocate funds for.  He said the level
one County-wide project was the acquisition of the existing Justice Center which was currently leased by the County from
the Public Facilities Authority.  He pointed out that under the S.P.L.O.S.T. the County would allocate $55 million to retire
that debt and the County would own the Justice Center in approximately four years.  He commented on the level two
County-wide projects that amount to $18 million dollars which include an Emergency Operations Center, Road, street
and bridge purposes, and acquisition of land and improvements for proposed university campus.  He noted that the total
for both levels was $73 million that would come to the County in annual installments specified in Section 10 each year
of the six years of the S.P.L.O.S.T. before any other monies in each year were disbursed to the County and the cities
for other projects.  He further remarked that the disbursement, as agreed to by the County and the cities, would be done
by the population according to the census of 2000.  He said this would come to 0.61% to the Town of Brooks; 12.21%
to the City of Fayetteville; 34.60% to the City of Peachtree City; 4.29% to the Town of Tyrone; 0.19% to the Town of
Woolsey and 48.10% to the County.  He said all of the cities had approved the Intergovernmental Agreement and he
had received all of the signatures on the Agreement.  He said this would call for a special election on November 3, 2009.
He pointed out that the money from this S.P.L.O.S.T. could not be used on the West Fayetteville Bypass.  He said the
money in the current S.P.L.O.S.T. was allocated for that project.  He said it had been a very successful process in
working with the cities and he was very pleased in working with the city attorneys in getting this Intergovernmental
Agreement accomplished.  


Commissioner Maxwell confirmed that a legal notice would be published in the newspaper listing all of the projects that
had just been verbalized.  Attorney Bennett replied that the referendum resolution would call for that advertisement.  He
said this was a contract between the County and all of the municipalities that if the S.P.L.O.S.T. was passed by the
voters, this was the agreement as to the distribution of funds and how the project lists were going to be spelled out.  He
pointed out that the ballot would list every one of these capital projects and these would be the only projects that the
money could be spent for.


Commissioner Maxwell asked for clarification on the Level I and Level II projects as listed with the retirement of the debt
for the Justice Center in the amount of $55 million being the Level I project.  Attorney Bennett noted that the Justice
Center was prioritized in the agreement as the only Level I project.  Attorney Bennett said he would like to clarify this.
He said he wanted to be clear that under this agreement in the first year on April 1, 2010 money would be collected from
that date through March 31 , 2011.  He said out of those proceeds $10,632,570 would come to the County to be spentst


on the Level I project to go toward the $55 million of debt on the Justice Center.  He said the rest of the money in excess
of that would be divided among the cities and the County for the rest of the specifically stated projects.  He said in the
second year $11,057,872 would come to the County first to go toward the Level I project and the remainder of the money
would be dispersed.  He pointed out if only $10,000,000 of S.P.L.O.S.T. money was collected in the first year, then all
of that money would go toward the Justice Center but if $14,000,000 was collected then $4,000,000 of that money would
be dispersed to the cities to be spent on the specified projects. 







Board of Commissioners Minutes


August 13, 2009 


Page 5


Commissioner Maxwell pointed out that this was a negotiated S.P.L.O.S.T. and it would be a six year S.P.L.O.S.T. as
opposed to a five year S.P.L.O.S.T. that was currently in place.  He said there had been some prior discussion on
possibly increasing homeowner’s exemption.


Chairman Smith remarked that when the Board was originally discussing the S.P.L.O.S.T. the Board felt it might be a
good idea, if the County was going to be able to save the almost $4 million a year from the pay off of the Justice Center
debt, that would allow the County to increase the Homestead Exemption.  He said it was his intent to pass this on the
homeowners and give them some relief.  He said the number he had discussed was possibly doubling the Homestead
exemption.  He said this step in reducing the annual expenditures for lease payments for the Justice Center by paying
it off with S.P.L.O.S.T. dollars was simply a mechanism that the Board could use to better manage the resources that
are under the Board’s control.  


Commissioner Frady interjected that the vehicle inspection survey that had been done a couple of years ago in the
shopping centers indicated that almost half of the cars were out-of-county vehicles.  Commissioner Maxwell agreed and
said this would help redistribute the burden of taxes on out-of-county people and this would be a decision that the voters
could make in November.  
                                        
Commissioner Frady made a motion to approve Resolution No. 2009-11 which approves the Intergovernmental
Agreement and also authorize the Chairman to execute the Intergovernmental Agreement with the County’s
municipalities for the distribution of special purpose local option sales tax proceeds, if approved by referendum on
November 3, 2009.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of Resolution No.
2009-11 and the Intergovernmental Agreement, identified as “Attachment No. 10", follow these minutes and are made
an official part hereof.  


D.           CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2009-12 WHICH PROVIDES FOR THE IMPOSITION OF A ONE
PERCENT SPECIAL PURPOSE LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX AND REQUESTS THE CALL FOR AN
ELECTION TO BE HELD ON NOVEMBER 3, 2009:


County Attorney Scott Bennett noted that this item was Resolution No. 2009-12 and he discussed this Resolution with
the Board.  He pointed out that this Resolution would call for the election and directs the Superintendent of Elections to
notify the public of the election, what they would be voting on and also to conduct the election.


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve Resolution No. 2009-12 and to also authorize the Chairman to execute
said Resolution which provides for the imposition of a one percent special purpose local option sales tax and requests
the call for an election to be held on November 3, 2009 and notification to the public of this election. Commissioner Hearn
seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of Resolution NO. 2009-12, identified as “Attachment No.11",
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


NEW BUSINESS:
E.           CONSIDERATION OF A REQUEST FROM THE FAYETTE COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE FOR ASSISTANCE


IN APPLYING FOR A GRANT FROM THE UNITED STATES JUSTICE DEPARTMENT’S EDWARD BYRNE
MEMORIAL JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT (JAG) FORMULA PROGRAM IN THE AMOUNT OF $17,367:


Major Bryan Woodie of the Fayette County Sheriff’s Office remarked that Sheriff Wayne Hannah had determined that
he would like to employ a computer based license plate recognition technology software program whereby camera
systems would be installed in certain patrol cars.  He said this would allow those patrol cars to automatically scan license
plates through an electronic means.  He said this would alert the Sheriff’s Department to possible stolen vehicles or







Board of Commissioners Minutes


August 13, 2009 


Page 6


vehicles involved in other types of crime.  He said these systems were fairly expensive with an estimated cost of
$76,000.  He said through research and information from the Justice Department it was discovered that Fayette County
was eligible for approximately $17,367 that could be used to support this technology based program.  He said the
acceptance of the award was contingent on the fact that the Commissioners will endorse this grant application which
is a non-matching grant.  He said in addition to asking for a Federal Grant to pay for part of this project, the Sheriff
intends to use Federal asset forfeiture funding that has been taken in from drug dealers and others who have committed
crimes.


Chairman Smith clarified that this would cost the County nothing and the County would actually be getting something
back. Major Woodie replied that was correct and said this was a unique Fayette County situation in terms of law
enforcement for a Federal Grant.  


Commissioner Frady made a motion to approve the Fayette County Sheriff’s Office request for assistance in applying
for a grant from the United States Justice Department’s Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Formula
Program in the amount of $17,367.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion, discussion followed.


County Administrator Jack Krakeel questioned the cost for monthly maintenance expense that the Sheriff’s Office would
incur as well as the cost of service for the software program that runs the system. Captain Woodie replied that the initial
purchase of the system includes a three year maintenance in the initial purchase price.  He said it was the Sheriff’s
Office’s intention not to increase the cost to the taxpayers or increase it as little as possible if anything.  He said if
necessary the Sheriff’s Office would make budget concessions and also use the Federal funding mechanism provides
access to that funding as well.  


The motion carried  5-0.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 12", follows these minutes and is made
an official part hereof.  


F.          APPROVAL OF STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION TO AWARD MISCELLANEOUS CONCRETE PROPOSAL
#P713 TO LOW BIDDER, CURB SPECIALIST, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $183,182.75, FOR INSTALLATION
OF CURBING, CATCH BASINS AND OTHER CONCRETE WORK FOR THE WEST FAYETTEVILLE
PARKWAY PROJECT:


Director of Public Works Phil Mallon asked for the Board’s consideration to award the miscellaneous concrete proposal
#P713 to low bidder Curb Specialist, Inc. in the amount of $183,182.75 for installation of curbing, catch basins and other
concrete work for the West Fayetteville Parkway Project.  He said this project would begin sometime in mid September
and take approximately three weeks to complete.  He said he would like to commend his staff including Carlos Christian
particularly who single handedly prepared the specifications and worked with the Purchasing Department to get this bid
package put together.  


Commissioner Hearn made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation to award miscellaneous concrete proposal
#P713 to low bidder, Curb Specialist, Inc. in the amount of $188,182.75, for installation of curbing, catch basins and other
concrete work for the West Fayetteville Parkway Project. Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  The motion
carried 5-0.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 13", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


August 13, 2009 


Page 7


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:
MILLAGE RATE TO BE DECIDED AT THE AUGUST 27, 2009 COMMISSION MEETING: County Administrator Jack
Krakeel remarked that the Board would be setting the millage rate for property taxes in Fayette County at the Thursday,
August 27  meeting.  He noted that the advertisement had been published in the newspaper.  He pointed out that thereth


would be no increase in the millage rate.


ATTORNEY’S REPORT:
RENEWAL AGREEMENT WITH UNDERWRITERS SAFETY & CLAIMS: County Attorney Scott Bennett asked for the
Board’s consideration to authorize approval of the renewal Agreement in the amount of $8,000 annually with
Underwriters Safety & Claims and Fayette County to handle workers compensation claims and also authorize the
Chairman to execute this Agreement.
 
Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve the renewal Agreement with Underwriters Safety & Claims in the
amount of $8,000 annually to handle the County’s Workers Compensation claims and authorize the Chairman to execute
this Agreement. Commissioner Frady seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the Agreement, identified
as “Attachment No. 14", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


STAFF REPORTS:
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR PHIL MALLON:  Public Works Director Phil Mallon commented on the ongoing
preparation of the County’s Comprehensive Transportation Plan and remarked that the County was approaching the final
phase of the project.  He remarked that there would be a public meeting next week on Tuesday, August 18  at 6:30 p.m.th


at the Peachtree City Hall Council Chambers.  He said the purpose of the meeting was to present draft policies and
projects that have surfaced from public input as well as the project team.  He said everyone was welcome to attend that
meeting.  


BOARD REPORTS:
WELCOME TO NEW EMPLOYEE ANDY ADAMS AT THE ROAD DEPARTMENT: Commissioner Hearn said he would
like to welcome Andy Adams as the new Road Superintendent at the Road Department.  He said Andy comes with 25
years of experience with Clayton County.  He said he personally had worked with Andy at the Atlanta Regional
Commission on some of the regional issues and he said Andy would be a tremendous asset to the Road Department.


EXECUTIVE SESSION:
None.


ADJOURNMENT:
Hearing no further business to come before the Board, Chairman Smith adjourned the meeting at 8:30 p.m.


___________________________________                              __________________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk                          Jack R.  Smith, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 27  day of August, 2009.th


___________________________________


Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk





